
ELMORE COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
War Memorial (American Legion Hall), 515 East 2nd  South Street, Mountain Home, ID 

83647 

Wednesday, March 18, 2015 at 7:00pm 
Agenda  

PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES  

CALL TO ORDER 

ESTABLISH QUORUM 

    

  

❑ Chairperson Patti Osborn 
❑ Betty Van Gheluwe 
❑ Ed Oppedyk 
❑ Jeff Blanksma 

❑ Vice-Chairperson K.C. Duerig 
❑ Sue Fish 
❑ Shane Zenner 

 

❑ Attorney of Record Phil Miller 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

PUBLIC MEETING  

■ Sage Grouse Work Session  
■ Ordinance Work Session  

 

 

ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC  

FCO and MINUTES  

■ Minutes from 02-18-15  

INFORMATION ITEMS  

■ Upcoming P & Z Schedule.  

MEETING ADJOURNED  

 

       



Draft 	 Draft 

ELMORE COUNTY 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

MINUTES  
Wednesday, February 18 at 7:00 pm 

Vice Chairman Duerig called the meeting to order. Members of the Elmore County Planning and 
Zoning Commission present were Betty Van Gheluwe, Sue Fish, Shane Zenner, and Ed 
Oppedyk. Also present were Attorney of Record Phillip Miller, Director Alan Christy and staff 
member Kacey Ramsauer. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PUBLIC MEETING  
Ordinance Work Session  
Christy stated that he has provided a memo on the proposed changes that have been started for 
the zoning and development ordinance. He stated that he has provided red lines for chapters 1 
and 3. He stated that in addition the memo will cover changes proposed in chapters 1, 3, and 4. 
He stated that it is anticipated that this will be a lengthy process and there will be multiple work 
sessions on this as well. He stated that it would probably be better if chapters 2 and 8 which are 
definitions and zoning regulations were covered last. He stated that he is trying to get 
consistency in terms throughout the ordinance. 

FCO and Minutes 
Case Number: CUP-2015-02 Jane Junge (Mickey and Minnie's Playhouse)  
Oppedvk moved to approve. 
Van Gheluwe seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Minutes from 01-21-15  
Oppedyk moved to approve. 
Fish seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Upcoming P & Z Schedule  
Christy recommended the commission cancel the meeting on March 4th as there are no agenda 
items. 
Van Gheluwe moved to cancel the March 4th meeting, 
Oppedyk seconded. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED 

Page 1 of 2 
2015-02-18 kr 



Draft 	 Draft 

K.0 Duerig, Vice Chairman 	 Date: 

Attest: 	  
Alan Christy, Director 	 Date: 

Page 2 of 2 
2015-02-18 kr 



Elmore County Land Use and Building Department 
520 East 2nd  South Street 
Mountain Home, ID 83647 

Phone: (208) 587-2142 ext.254 
Fax: (208) 587-2120 

Memorandum 

Date: 3/09/15 

To: Elmore County Planning and Zoning Commission 

From: Alan Christy, Director 

Re: Chapter 1, 3 & 4 Zoning and Development Ordinance Work Session 

Background 

The purpose of this memorandum is to give a summary of proposed changes to the Zoning and 
Development Ordinance ("Ordinance") for chapters 1, 3 & 4. It is anticipated that chapter 2 will 
be reviewed once all other chapters have been reviewed to ensure all definitions are added to 
the Ordinance. 

Summary of Changes for Chapter 1 

■ Consistency in terms, i.e. Title. 
■ Grammar errors. 
■ Added provision for tabled applications. 
■ Added requirement for legal descriptions be adopted with all zoning maps. 

Summary of Changes for Chapter 3 

■ Moved section 6-3-1, 6-3-2, 6-3-9 through 6-3-12 to Chapter 4. Chapter 3 will 
specifically deal with enforcement of the Ordinance. Sections were renumbered 
accordingly. 

■ Added requirement that taxes be current before issuing a zoning permit. 
■ Section 6-3-6 was removed because it is dealt with in other areas of the Ordinance. 

Summary of Changes for Chapter 4 

■ Added sections from chapter 3 for procedural items. 
■ Added section for pre-application meetings. 
■ Added language stating that applications will not be accepted if taxes are delinquent or 

outstanding. 
■ Added language to give the County the option to require State and Federal approval 

before accepting an application. 
■ Added section for tabled applications. 
■ Changed notification distance to 1000'. Deleted items that required 1000' notice. 

Deleted the notice requirement for CAFO's because it conflicted with Chapter 34. 
■ Added section for procedure to amend the Comprehensive Plan. 
■ Added section from chapter 8 for Map Ordinance Amendments. 

Alan Christy 
Director 

Tell Riley 
Building Official 

Beth Bresnahan 
Planner I 

Kacey Ramsauer 
Administrative 
Assistant 

i 



■ Added section for tabled applications. 
■ Modified reconsideration to remain in compliance with Idaho Code. 
■ Variance items clarified. 

Items for Discussion 

■ When necessary does the County want the option to require State and Federal 
approvals prior to accepting an application? 

■ Should the County have the option to record violations? Staff has not provided any 
language in the proposed changes. If the Commission wishes to add this a section 
should be added in chapter 3. Examples are provided as attachment 4 to this 
memorandum. 

Moving Forward 

Staff recommends the Commission conduct another work session on April 15, 2015. As a 
reminder, this review and proposed changes are a legislative item. These items can be 
discussed with anyone at anytime. 

Attachments: 
1. Proposed Changes for Chapter 1. Clean and Redline Versions. 
2. Proposed Changes for Chapter 3. Clean and Redline Versions. 
3. Proposed Changes for Chapter 4. Clean and Redline Versions. 
4. Examples of recording violations from other jurisdictions. 

2 



TITLE 6 & TITLE 7 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

Table of Contents Title 6 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 

Chapter 1 Ordinance, Purpose, Interpretation And 
Enactment 

3 

Chapter 2 Zoning And Development Ordinance 
Definitions 

9 

Chapter 3 Appeals, Enforcement, Waivers, Variances, 
And Time Extensions 

91 

Chapter 4 Application Procedures And Fees 104 
Chapter 5 Authority And Duties Of The Growth And 

Development Director 
112 

Chapter 6 Hearing Examiner 114 
Chapter 7 Planning And Zoning Commission 

Jurisdiction, And Duties 
118 

Chapter 8 Zoning and Overlay Districts 130 
Chapter 9 Non Conforming Property, Use Or Structure, 

And Grandfather Rights 
245 

Chapter 10 Farm Development Right 252 
Chapter 11 Standard Regulations Applying To All 

Districts 
255 

Chapter 12 Fire Prevention And Wild Fire Mitigation 
Standards And Regulations Applying To All 
Districts 

262 

Chapter 13 Flood Hazard Mitigation And Development 
Requirements Pertaining To Flooding 

277 

Chapter 14 Areas Of Critical Concern And Hillside 
Development Requirements 

291 

Chapter 15 One-Time Division Of Property 305 
Chapter 16 Property Boundary Adjustments 309 
Chapter 17 Public And Private Roads 312 
Chapter 18 Master Site Plan Requirements 319 
Chapter 19 Landscaping Ordinance 330 
Chapter 20 Off-Street Parking And Loading 

Requirements 
350 

Page 1 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Table of Contents Title 6 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 
Chapter 21 Lighting Standards And Plans 368 

Chapter 22 Sign Standards 373 

Chapter 23 Open Space Standards And Development 
Requirements 

410 

Chapter 24 Temporary Use And Development 
Requirements Pertaining To Temporary Uses 

416 

Chapter 25 Wellhead Protection Ordinance 421 
Chapter 26 Accessory Uses And Regulations Pertaining 

To Accessory Type Land Uses 
426 

Chapter 27 Conditional Use Permit (Cup) Standards And 
Requirements 

430 

Chapter 28 Subdivision Requirements And Regulations 436 

Chapter 29 Development Agreement (DA) Standards And 
Requirements 

453 

Chapter 30 Planned Community (PC) Standards 459 

Chapter 31 Planned Unit Development (PUD) Standards 486 

Chapter 32 Planned Unit Development District (PUDD) 
Standards 

510 

Chapter 33 Surety Agreements And Related 
Requirements 

536 

Chapter 34 Confined Animal Feeding Operations 
(CAFOs) 

538 

Chapter 35 Common Driveways And Flag Lots 553 
Chapter 36 Airport Hazard Zones 557 
Chapter 37 Family Burial Grounds 566 
Chapter 38 Mayfield Townsite Planned Community 569 
Chapter 39 Cluster Development 652 
Chapter 40 Building Regulations 657 

Table of Contents Title 7, Areas of Impact 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 

Chapter 1 Area of Impact Mountain Home 660 
Chapter 2 Area of Impact Glenns Ferry 667 

Page 2 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER 1 - TITLE, PURPOSE, INTERPRETATION AND ENACTMENT 

Sections: 

6-1-1: 	Title 
6-1-2: 	Authority and Purpose 
6-1-3: 	Provisions Declared To Be Minimum Requirements 
6-1-4: 	Preservation of Private Property Rights 
6-1-5: 	Prohibited Uses 
6-1-6: 	Wildfire Prevention 
6-1-7: 	Severability Clause 
6-1-8: 	Effective Date 
6-1-9: 	Applicability 
6-1-10: 	Interpretation 
6-1-11: 	Errors in Legal Descriptions 
6-1-12: 	References to Other Laws or Titles or Policies 
6-1-13: 	Saving Clause 

Section 6-1-1: Title: 

A. Titles 6 and 7 shall be known and referred to as the Elmore County Zoning and 
Development Ordinance ("Ordinance"). 

Section 6-1-2: Authority and Purpose: 

A. 	This Zoning and Development Ordinance, Titles 6 and 7, are adopted pursuant to 
authority granted in Title 67 Chapter 65 of the Idaho Code ("Local Land Use Planning 
Act") and Title 12, Section 2 of the Idaho Constitution. It is enacted for the purpose of 
guiding the use and development of land within Elmore County while promoting public 
health, safety, and general welfare. 

Section 6-1-3: Provisions Declared To Be Minimum Requirements: 

A. 	In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Ordinance shall be held to 
be minimum requirements. Whenever the requirements of any other lawfully adopted 
rules, regulations, titles, or resolutions prevail, the most restrictive rules or those 
imposing the higher standards shall govern. 

Page 3 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Section 6-1-4: Preservation of Private Property Rights: 

A. This Ordinance shall be interpreted to equally protect each citizen from the undue 
encroachment on such citizen's private property by his or her neighbors' use of his or her 
own private property. Each citizen shall have the maximum use of his or her property 
without placing undue burden upon his or her neighbor. Every citizen of Elmore County 
shall at all times have the right to appear in person or by his or her agent before the 
Director, Commission or Board to freely petition for the relief of an alleged burden 
created by this Ordinance, and to appeal any decision of the Director or Commission 
pursuant to the procedure stated herein. The enforcement of this Ordinance shall apply 
equally to each person and property in the similar circumstances. 

Section 6-1-5: Prohibited Uses: 

A. 	All uses not permitted under the terms of this Ordinance are prohibited. 

Section 6-1-6: Wildfire Prevention: 

A. Elmore County has a long history with wildfires. This Ordinance is oriented to the 
prevention of wildfires and mitigation of the negative effects of wildfires. 

Section 6-1-7: Severability Clause: 

A. If any provisions of this Ordinance or the application to any persons or circumstances are 
held invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance or the application or provisions to other 
persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Should any chapter, section or 
provision of this Ordinance be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, 
the Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part so declared shall not be 
affected thereby. 

Section 6-1-8: Effective Date: 

A. 	This Ordinance shall become effective from and after the date of its approval and 
adoption, as provided by law. 

Section 6-1-9: Applicability: 

A. 	The regulations of this Ordinance shall apply to all unincorporated properties within 
Elmore County and shall govern development and use of those properties. 

Page 4 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



B. Compliance; Approval Required: No person or entity shall construct, alter, move, or 
change the use of a structure or undertake any development unless: 

1. The proposed use, structure, or division of property complies with this Ordinance; 
and 

2. Any required approval is first obtained as provided by this Ordinance, and any 
applicable conditions of approval are met. 

C. Permits Required: Nothing in this Ordinance shall eliminate the need for obtaining any 
other required permits, including, but not limited to, building permits, plumbing, 
electrical, or mechanical permits, grading permits, or any permit, or approval required by 
other sections of this Ordinance, other political subdivisions of the State of Idaho, or 
agencies of the State of Idaho. 

D. Unincorporated County Properties: All properties in unincorporated Elmore County shall 
comply with the regulations of this Ordinance unless otherwise preempted by Federal 
Statute or local Ordinances. 

E. Previous Violations: The prosecution of violations that occurred under previous land use 
regulations and that remain a violation under this Ordinance shall continue until resolved. 

F. Project with Pending Application: All applications shall be processed according to the 
regulations and requirements in effect as of the date the Director accepted the application 
and deemed it complete. Director acceptance and deeming an application complete does 
not guarantee approval. 

G. Tabled Application: Projects that have been accepted by the Director and tabled prior to 
any approval, shall be deemed withdrawn after one (1) year of inactivity unless otherwise 
approved by the County. 

H. Approved Project with Pending Request for a Time Extension: Time extension requests 
shall be consistent with the requirements that are in effect when the original application 
was approved. 

I. Approved Projects Not Yet Completed: Any approved application may still be completed 
as provided by the approval. 

Section 6-1-10: Interpretation: 

A. Language: 

1. Terminology: When used in this Ordinance, all words used in the present tense shall 
include the future; words used in the singular number shall include the plural number 

Page 5 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



and the plural the singular, unless the natural construction of the sentence indicates 
otherwise. The word "shall" is mandatory, and the word "may" is permissive. 

2. Number of Days: Whenever a number of days is specified in this Ordinance, or in 
any permit, condition of approval, or notice issued or given as provided in this 
Ordinance the number of days shall be construed as calendar days, except that such 
time limits shall extend to the following working day when the last of the specified 
number of days falls on a weekend or Elmore County holiday. 

3. Minimum Requirements: When interpreting and applying the regulations of this 
Ordinance, all regulations shall be considered to be minimum requirements, unless 
stated otherwise. Proposed uses shall comply with all applicable regulations and 
standards unless specifically exempt elsewhere in this Ordinance. 

4. Defined Terms: Terms defined in this chapter shall have their defined meanings 
when used elsewhere in this Ordinance. For the purpose of readability and clarity, 
such terms may not be shown in initial caps. 

5. Section Headings: Section headings or captions are for reference purposes only and 
shall not be used in the interpretation of this Ordinance. 

6. References: All references to State or Federal laws and/or regulations shall refer to 
such laws and/or regulations as they may be amended over time. 

B. Measurements: 

1. Structure height: Shall be measured as the vertical distance from the average contact 
ground level at the front wall of a building to the highest point of the coping of a flat 
roof, the deck line of a mansard roof, or the average height (mid-point) of the highest 
gable of a pitch or hip roof. 

2. Linear distance: Shall be measured in a horizontal line; it shall not be measured 
along an inclined surface or line. For uses that have a separation standard, the 
distance shall be measured from the nearest customer entrance of the proposed use to 
the nearest property line of the specified use. The measurement is to be conducted in 
a radial fashion by the specified number of feet (e.g., 300 feet, 1,000 feet). 

3. Illumination levels: Shall be measured with a calibrated photoelectric photometer or 
similar device capable of accurate measurement of foot-candle or lumens when 
measured one foot (1') from the light source. 

4. Noise levels: Shall be measured at the property line with a calibrated noise meter or 
similar device capable of accurate measurement (dB, decibel) of sound. 

Page 6 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



C. District Boundaries: Legal descriptions shall be adopted with all official zoning maps. 
Where uncertainty exists about the location of any district boundary shown on the official 
zoning map, the following rules shall be used to resolve the uncertainty: 

1. Where a district boundary approximately follows a property line, such property line 
shall be construed as the district boundary; and 

2. Where a district boundary approximately follows a street, alley, or railroad line, such 
street, alley, centerline, or the extension of such line, shall be construed as the district 
boundary. Where a street or alley is officially vacated and that street or alley has not 
been given a zoning designation, the land that was formerly in the vacated street or 
alley shall have the same designation as the abutting property on either side of the 
centerline of the vacated street or alley; and 

3. Where a district boundary approximately follows a watercourse, the centerline of the 
watercourse shall be construed to be such boundary. In the event of a change in the 
watercourse shoreline, the boundary shall be construed as moving with the actual 
shoreline. 

D. Conflicting Regulations: 

1. In case of conflict between the text and the maps of this Ordinance, the maps shall 
prevail; and 

2. If conflicts occur between different regulations of this Ordinance, or between this 
Ordinance and other regulations of this Ordinance, the most restrictive regulation 
shall apply unless otherwise specified by other regulations of this Ordinance. 

E. Allowed Uses: If a proposed use of property is not specifically listed in Chapter 8, 
Zoning and Overlay Districts, of this Ordinance, the use shall be prohibited, except as 
follows: the Director may determine that a proposed use not listed in this Ordinance is 
equivalent to an allowed or conditional use if the Director finds all of the following: 

1. The impacts on public services and activities associated with the proposed use are 
substantially similar to those of one or more of the uses listed in the applicable base 
or overlay districts as allowed; and 

2. The proposed use shall not involve a higher level of activity or density than one or 
more of the uses listed in the applicable base or overlay districts as allowed; and; 

3. The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the district in which the use is 
proposed to be located; and 

4. The proposed use is in substantial conformance with goals and objectives of the 
applicable Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 7 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Section 6-1-11: Errors in Legal Descriptions: 

A. Where a property has not been zoned due to an error in a legal description the following 
shall apply: 

1. An error caused by the County, shall be corrected and duly processed by the 
County as soon as the error is discovered; and 

2. If the error is caused by the applicant and/or owner, the applicant shall apply for a 
zoning Ordinance map amendment and submit the proper fees. 

Section 6-1-12: References to Other Laws or Titles or Policies: 

A. 	References in this Ordinance to other Titles or Ordinances of Elmore County and 
Statutes of the State of Idaho are provided solely for the coordination of this Ordinance 
with such other Ordinances and Statutes. 

Section 6-1-13: Saving Clause: 

A. 	Should any section, clause, or regulation of this Ordinance be declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of this 
Ordinance as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be invalid; 
each section, clause, or regulation hereof being declared severable. 

Page 8 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



TITLE 6  & TITLE 7  
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING andAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

Table of Contents Title 6 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 

Chapter 1 Ordinance, Purpose, Interpretation And 
Enactment 

3 

Chapter 2 Zoning And Development Ordinance 
Definitions 

9 

Chapter 3 Appeals, Enforcement, Waivers, Variances, 
And Time Extensions 

91 

Chapter 4 Application Procedures And Fees 104 

Chapter 5 Authority And Duties Of The Growth And 
Development Di rector 

112 

Chapter 6 Hearing Examiner 114 
Chapter 7 Planning And Zoning Commission 

Jurisdiction, And Duties 
118 

Chapter 8 Zoning and Overlay Districts 130 
Chapter 9 Non Conforming Property, Use Or Structure, 

And Grandfather Rights 
245 

Chapter 10 Farm Development Right 252 

Chapter 11 Standard Regulations Applying To All 
Districts 

255 

Chapter 12 Fire Prevention And Wild Fire Mitigation 
Standards And Regulations Applying To All 
Districts 

262 

Chapter 13 Flood Hazard Mitigation And Development 
Requirements Pertaining To Flooding 

277 

Chapter 14 Areas Of Critical Concern And Hillside 
Development Requirements 

291 

Chapter 15 One-Time Division Of Property 305 
Chapter 16 Property Boundary Adjustments 309 

Chapter 17 Public And Private Roads 312 

Chapter 18 Master Site Plan Requirements 319 

Chapter 19 Landscaping Ordinance 330 

Chapter 20 Off-Street Parking And Loading 
Requirements 

350 

Page 1 of 672 	 REV-1-2015.02-11 



Table of Contents Title 6 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 

Chapter 21 Lighting Standards And Plans 368 

Chapter 22 Sign Standards 373 

Chapter 23 Open Space Standards And Development 
Requirements 

410 

Chapter 24 Temporary Use And Development 
Requirements Pertaining To Temporary Uses 

416 

Chapter 25 Wellhead Protection Ordinance 421 
Chapter 26 Accessory Uses And Regulations Pertaining 

To Accessory Type Land Uses 
426 

Chapter 27 Conditional Use Permit (Cup) Standards And 
Requirements 

430 

Chapter 28 Subdivision Requirements And Regulations 436 

Chapter 29 Development Agreement (DA) Standards And 
Requirements 

453 

Chapter 30 Planned Community (PC) Standards 459 

Chapter 31 Planned Unit Development (PUD) Standards 486 

Chapter 32 Planned Unit Development District (PUDD) 
Standards 

510 

Chapter 33 Surety Agreements And Related 
Requirements 

536 

Chapter 34 Confined Animal Feeding Operations 
(CAFOs) 

538 

Chapter 35 Common Driveways And Flag Lots 553 
Chapter 36 Airport Hazard Zones 557 
Chapter 37 Family Burial Grounds 566 
Chapter 38 Mayfield Townsite Planned Community 569 
Chapter 39 Cluster Development 652 
Chapter 40 Building Regulations 657 

Table of Contents Title 7, Areas of Impact 

Chapter Summary of Contents Page # 

Chapter I Area of Impact Mountain Home 660 
Chapter 2 Area of Impact Glenns Ferry 667 

Page 2 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING  °WAND  DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 	 1 

  

Formatted: Font: Bold, (none) 

   

CHAPTER 1 - TITLE, PURPOSE, INTERPRETATION AND ENACTMENT 

Sections: 

6-1-1: 	Title 
6-1-2: 	Authority and Purpose 
6-1-3: 	Provisions Declared To Be Minimum Requirements 
6-1-4: 	Preservation of Private Property Rights 
6-1-5: 	Prohibited Uses 
6-1-6: 	Wildfire Prevention 
6-1-7: 	Severability Clause 
6-1-8: 	Effective Date 
6-1-9: 	Applicability 
6-1-10: 	Interpretation 
6-1-11: 	Errors in Legal Descriptions 
6-1-12: 	References to Other Laws or Titles or Policies 
6-1-13: 	Saving Clause 

_ — 	Formatted: Font: Bold 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Don't add space 
between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Section 6-1-1: Title: 

A.  T-41eTizleN 6 and-Title 7 shall be known and referred to as the Elmore County Zoning an 
Development Ordinance,   ("Ordinance"i. 

Section 6-1-2: Authority and Purpose: 

A. 	This Zoning and Development Ordinance, TitleTitles 6 and 7, 
Regtiltitielware adopted pursuant to authority granted  teiti Title (7 Chapter 65 of the 
Idaho Code (-1 °cal I.and LNe Planning_Act.) and Title 12, Section 2 of the Idaho 
Constitution. It is enacted for the purpose of guiding the use and development of land 
within Elmore County while promoting public health, safety, and general welfare. 

Page 3 of 672 

 

REV-1 -2015-02-11 



Section 6-1-3: Provisions Declared To Be Minimum Requirements: 

A. 	In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this TitleOrdinance shall be held 
to be minimum requirements. Whenever the requirements of any other lawfully adopted 
rules, regulations, Titlestitles, or resolutions prevail, the most restrictive rules or those 
imposing the higher standards shall govern. 

Section 6-1-4: Preservation of Private Property Rights: 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.31", Don't 
add space between paragraphs of the same style 

- 1 Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

A. 	This Tit4e0i•dinance shall be interpreted to equally protect each citizen from the undue 
encroachment on such citizen's private property by his or her neighbors' use of his or her 
own private property. Each citizen shall have the maximum use of his or her property 
without placing undue burden upon his or her neighbor. Every citizen of Elmore County 
shall at all times have the right to appear in person or by his or her agent before the 
Director, Commission or Board to freely petition for the relief of an alleged burden 
created by this Tit-leOrdinzuice, and to appeal any decision of the Director or 
Commission pursuant to the procedure stated herein. The enforcement of this 
TigeOrdinance shall apply equally to each person and property in the similar 
circumstances. 

Section 6-1-5: Prohibited Uses: 

A. 	All uses not permitted under the terms of this TitleOrtlinance are prohibited. 

Section 6-1-6: Wildfire Prevention: 

A. Elmore County has a long history with wildfires. This ettintafk4-Eleveleprftent 
TifleOrdinance is oriented to the prevention of wildfires and mitigation of the negative 
effects of wildfires. 

Section 6-1-7: Severability Clause: 

A. If any provisions of this T-i+leOrdinano: or the application to any persons or 
circumstances are held invalid, the remainder of the T-414e0idinunee or the application or 
provisions to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby. Should any 
chapter, section or provision of this Tille0alinance be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, the TitteOrdinance as a whole or any part thereof other than th 
part so declared shall not be affected thereby. 

Page 4 of 672 	 REV-1-2015.02-11 



• 

Section 6-1-8: Effective Date: 

A. 	This  TitleOrdinance  shall become effective from and after the date of its approval and 
—adoption, as provided by law. 

Section 6-1-9: Applicability: 

A. The regulations of this  TitleOrdinance  shall apply to all unincorporated properties within 
Elmore 

- 	County and shall govern development and use of those properties. 

B. Compliance; Approval Required: No person or  pubbe-ageneyentii  v shall construct, alter, 
move, or change the use of a structure or undertake any development unless: 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style 

I Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Hanging: 0.31", Don't add 
space between paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 
0.31", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

f
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.25", Don't add 
space between paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 
0.5", Left 

1. The proposed use, structure, or division of property complies with this 
TitleOrdinance;  and 

2. Any required approval is first obtained as provided  by   this  TitleOrdinance  and any 
applicable conditions of approval are met. 

C. Permits Required: Nothing in this  TiEleOrilinanoN  shall eliminate the need for obtaining 
any other required permits, including, but not limited to, building permits, plumbing, 
electrical, or mechanical permits, grading permits, or any permit, or approval required by 
other Titlescections of this  eedeOrdinanee,  other political subdivisions of the State of 
Idaho, or agencies of the State of Idaho. 

D. Unincorporated County Properties: All properties in unincorporated Elmore County shal 
comply with the regulations of this  T.i+kOrdinance  unless otherwise preempted by 
st-alineFederal  Statute  or local  Titles  Ordinances.  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the — 
same style 

Formatted: Dan't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

E. Previous Violations: The prosecution of violations that occurred under previous land use 
regulations and that remain a violation under this  Tit-leOrdintulce  shall continue until 
resolved. 

F. Project with Pending Application: All applications shall be processed according to the 
regulations and requirements in effect as of the date the Director accepted the application 
and deemed it complete. Director acceptance and deeming an application complete does 
not guarantee  approval. 

G. Tabled Application: Projects that have been accepted by the Director and tabled Prior  to 
any approval, shall he deemed withdrawn after one i I ) year of inactivity unless othenvi4k  
approved by the County.  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 5 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02.11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

1. 	Approved Projects Not Yet Completed: Any approved application may still be completed -k- - -  1  Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 

as provided by the approval. 	 same style    i 

H.  Approved Project with Pending Request for a Time Extension: Time extension requests I F - - Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 

shall be consistent with the requirements that are in effect when the original application 	same style 

was approved. 

-  -f Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Section 6-1-10: Interpretation: 

A. Language: 

I. Terminology: When used in this  Tit-leOidinance,  all words used in the present tense 
shall include the future; words used in the singular number shall include the plural 
number and the plural the singular, unless the natural construction of the sentence 
indicates otherwise. The word "shall" is mandatory, and the word "may" is 
permissive. 

2. Number of Days: Whenever a number of days is specified in this T-igeOrdinance, or1 
in any permit, condition of approval, or notice issued or given as provided in this 
Title:Ordinance the number of days shall be construed as calendar days, except that 
such time limits shall extend to the following working day when the last of the 
specified number of days falls on a weekend or Elmore County holiday. 

3. Minimum Requirements: When interpreting and applying the regulations of this 
UleOrdinance all regulations shall be considered to be minimum requirements, 
unless stated otherwise. Proposed uses shall comply with all applicable regulations 
and standards unless specifically exempt elsewhere in this Title. Ordinance.  

4. Defined Terms: Terms defined in this chapter shall have their defined meanings 
when used elsewhere in this Tit leOrdinance. For the purpose of readability and 
clarity, such terms may not be shown in initial caps. 

5. Section Headings: Section headings or captions are for reference purposes only and 
shall not be used in the interpretation of this  TiileOrdinance. 

6. References: All references to stateSiatc or feelera41-ecleral laws and/or regulations 
shall refer to such laws and/or regulations as they may be amended over time. 

B. Measurements: 

1. Structure height: Shall be measured as the vertical distance from the average contac 
ground level at the front wall of a building to the highest point of the coping of a flat 
roof, the deck line of a mansard roof, or the average height (mid-point) of the highest 
gable of a pitch or hip roof. 

Page 6 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



2. Linear distance: Shall be measured in a horizontal line; it shall not be measured 
along an inclined surface or line. For uses that have a separation standard, the 
distance shall be measured from the nearest customer entrance of the proposed use to 
the nearest property line of the specified use. The measurement is to be conducted in 
a radial fashion by the specified number of feet (e.g., 300 feet, 1,000 feet). 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

 

3. Illumination levels: Shall be measured with a calibrated photoelectric photometer or 
similar device capable of accurate measurement of foot-candle or lumens when 
measured one foot (1') feet-from the light source. 

    

4. Noise levels: Shall be measured at the property line with a calibrated noise meter or 
similar device capable of accurate measurement (dB, decibel) of sound. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	.1 
same style 

    

C. 	District Boundaries: Leeal descriptions shall be adopted with all official t °nine maps.  
Where Where uncertainty exists about the location of any district boundary shown on the official 
zoning map, the following rules shall be used to resolve the uncertainty: 

1. Where a district boundary approximately follows a property line, such property line 
shall be construed as the district boundary; and 

2. Where a district boundary approximately follows a street, alley, or railroad line, such) 4-
street, alley, centerline, or the extension of such line, shall be construed as the district 
boundary. Where a street or alley is officially vacated and that street or alley has not 
been given a zoning designation, the land that was formerly in the vacated street or 
alley shall have the same designation as the abutting property on either side of the 
centerline of the vacated street or alley; and 

   

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

   

3. Where a district boundary approximately follows a watercourse, the centerline of the 1 - - - - 
watercourse shall be construed to be such boundary. In the event of a change in the 
watercourse shoreline, the boundary shall be construed as moving with the actual 
shoreline. 

D. Conflicting Regulations: 

1. In case of conflict between the text and the maps of this TideOrdinance the maps 
shall prevail; and 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

2. If conflicts occur between different regulations of this T-itleOtdinance or between thi 	- - - 
T-kleOrdinance and other regulations of this eodeOrdinance, the most restrictive 
regulation shall apply unless otherwise specified by other regulations of this 
eerdeOrdinance. 

E. Allowed Uses: If a proposed use of property is not specifically listed in Chapter 8, 
Zoning and Overlay Districts, of this T-it•lea &min'e the use shall be prohibited, except 
as follows: the Director may determine that a proposed use not listed in this 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

Page 7 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: English (United States)  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

TitleOrdinance is equivalent to an allowed or conditional use if the Director finds all of 
the following: 

1. The impacts on public services and activities associated with the proposed use are 
substantially similar to those of one or more of the uses listed in the applicable base 
or overlay districts as allowed; and 

2. The proposed use shall not involve a higher level of activity or density than one or 
more of the uses listed in the applicable base or overlay districts as allowed; and; 

3. The proposed use is consistent with the purpose of the district in which the use is 
proposed to be located; and 

4. The proposed use is in substantial conformance with goals and objectives of the 
applicable Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 6-1-11: Errors in Legal Descriptions: 

A. Where a property has not been zoned due to an error in a legal description the following 
shall apply: 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

1. An error is-caused by the elautoyCountv, shall be corrected and duly processed by the 
eetiffiyC'ouniN• as soon as the error is discovered; and 

2. If the error is caused by the applicant and/or owner, the applicant shall apply for a 
zoning TitleOrdinance map amendment and submit the proper fees. 

Section 6-1-12: References to Other Laws or Titles or Policies: 

A. 	References in this Title01 din an cc to other Titles or eodesOrdinances of Elmore County 
and siettrtesStatutes of the State of Idaho are provided solely for the coordination of this 
T-ifloOrdiponce with such other T--itlesOrdinances and st-aWesStattites. 

Section 6-1-13: Saving Clause: 

A. 	Should any section, clause, or regulation of this Til4e0rdin an ce  be declared by a court o 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of this 
T-itleOrclinanck! as a whole, or any part thereof, other than the part so declared to be 
invalid; each section, clause, or regulation hereof being declared severable. 

Page 8 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02.11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 9 01'672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 

It- 

i 1 



TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER 3 - ENFORCEMENT 

Sections: 

6-3-1: 	General Enforcement 
6-3-2: 	Zoning Permits 
6-3-3: 	Enforcement, Violations and Penalties 
6-3-4: 	Emergency Suspension of Permit 
6-3-5: 	Revocation 
6-3-6: 	Investigation Fees and Work without a Permit 

Section 6-3-1: General Enforcement: 

A. Duty of Director: It shall be the duty of the Director to enforce these regulations and to 
issue citations and fines as necessary to enforce this Ordinance. The Director shall also 
coordinate as necessary with the Prosecuting Attorney to enforce any violations or lack of 
compliance herewith. The Elmore County Sheriff, and his or her authorized 
representatives, shall have the authority to enforce this Ordinance and assist the Director 
in enforcement actions as set forth in Idaho Code and this Ordinance. 

B. Sales Before Approval: No owner or agent of the owner of a parcel of land located in a 
proposed subdivision shall transfer or sell any such parcel before a final plat of such 
subdivision has been approved by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of these 
regulations and filed with the Elmore County Clerk. 

C. Metes and Bounds Description: The subdivision of any lot or parcel of land, by the use of 
metes and bounds description for the purpose of sale, transfer or lease with the intent of 
evading these regulations, shall not be permitted. All such described subdivisions shall be 
subject to all of the requirements contained in this Ordinance. 

D. Issuance of Building Permit: No building permit shall be issued for the construction of 
any building or structure located on a parcel, lot or plat in violation of this Ordinance. 

E. Appropriate actions and proceedings may be taken at law or in equity to prevent any 
violation of this Ordinance, to prevent unlawful construction, to recover damages, to 
restrain, correct or abate a violation, to prevent illegal occupancy of a building, structure 
or premises, and these remedies shall be in addition to the penalties described in this 
Ordinance. 

Page 91 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Section 6-3-2: Zoning Permits: 

A. No construction or alteration shall commence until the Director has issued a zoning 
permit. If no structures are involved, no use shall commence until the Director has issued 
a zoning permit. 

B. No zoning permit shall be issued for any use on a property in violation of this Ordinance 
or on a property that contains structures or uses in violation of this Ordinance. Any 
zoning permit secured in violation of State or Federal law shall be invalid. 

C. Any application that requires issuance of a zoning permit as a condition of approval shall 
be deemed complete with the issuance of the zoning permit. This provision shall apply to 
prior approved applications with issued zoning permits. 

D. Zoning permits issued in conjunction with a change of use that are not associated with a 
building permit shall expire if the new use has not commenced within one year of the 
date of issuance of the zoning permit. 

E. The zoning permit may require inspections and approvals specified in the approval of the 
application, or conditions of approval. 

F. If the Director determines the conditions of the zoning permit have been violated, the 
Director may impose a stop work order on a project until the violation has been remedied. 

G. No Zoning Permit shall be issued on property with delinquent or outstanding taxes. 

Section 6-3-3: Enforcement, Violations and Penalties: 

A. Enforcement Duties. All Departments, officials and employees of Elmore County vested 
with the authority to issue permits shall conform to the provisions of this Ordinance and 
shall issue no permit or license for uses, buildings or purposes in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. Any such permit issued in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance shall be null and void. The Director shall maintain a zoning enforcement 
program to promote the abatement of violations of this Ordinance and to provide 
assistance in the prosecution of such violations. It shall be the duty of the Director and/or 
the Building Official, or their authorized agent(s), to enforce the provisions of this 
Ordinance pertaining to the erection, construction, reconstruction, moving, conversion, 
alteration, addition, location, or raising of any building or structure. It shall further be the 
duty of the Director, or his/her authorized agent(s) to enforce the provisions of this 
ordinance pertaining to land use regulation, including compliance with the wrecking, 
salvage, and/or junk yard provisions. 

B. Enforcement. Enforcement of this Ordinance may be by criminal prosecution, a civil 
lawsuit or an abatement action. Selection of the enforcement procedure shall be at the 

Page 92 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



sole discretion of the County and commencement of one procedure shall not preclude 
commencement of another. 

C. No owner, occupant, tenant, manager, person or entity having control of or a legal 
interest in a property within Elmore County shall maintain a nuisance in common law or 
nuisance as defined in this Ordinance on said property. 

D. Violation of Ordinance Unlawful. Penalties and Restitution. It shall be unlawful for any 
owner, occupant, tenant, manager or any person or entity having control of or a legal 
interest in property to violate any requirement or duty imposed by this Ordinance. Upon 
conviction of any violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance such person shall 
be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or by 
imprisonment for not more than six (6) months, or both such fine and imprisonment. 
Each and every day of continuing violation shall be considered a separate criminal 
offense. Upon conviction, violators shall be responsible for and pay all incurred 
investigation, prosecution and court costs as determined by the court having jurisdiction 
over the proceeding. 

E. Administrative Procedure: Code Enforcement cases commence by a citizen complaint or 
any time knowledge of a possible violation becomes known to the County. Complainants 
may be anonymous or the complainant may leave a name and number so that they can be 
contacted in the future. Following commencement of the case, the following 
administrative procedure is followed: 

1. A site inspection is performed to verify that a violation exists on the property. 

2. The property owner, tenant, and/or occupant of the property where there exists a 
violation of the provisions of this Ordinance are then notified that a violation(s) 
exists. Such notice shall include (1) a description of the property where the violation 
exists, (2) a description of the details of the violation or violations and that there is a 
thirty (30) calendar day opportunity to correct the violation(s). This Notice may be 
made by personal service or certified mail, return receipt requested. The Code 
Enforcement Officer may extend the thirty (30) calendar day requirement for good 
cause, but under no circumstances shall the time period be extended for public health 
and safety issues for longer than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days. 

3. A follow up inspection is performed to verify that the violation(s) has/have been 
corrected. 

4. If compliance cannot be achieved through administrative channels, or if the 
landowner, tenant and/or occupant of the property fails or refuses to respond to said 
Notice of Violation within the prescribed time period, the County may commence 
enforcement action. 

5. Compliance with the above administrative procedure either completely or partially is 
at the discretion of the Director and/or Code Enforcement Officer and failure to  

Page 93 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



follow these procedures shall not bar commencement of a criminal, civil, or 
abatement proceeding by the County. 

F. Enforcement Actions. 

1. Criminal Actions shall commence by issuance of a misdemeanor criminal citation 
signed by the Code Enforcement Officer, Director, any county law enforcement 
officer, any county employee so authorized by the Board or by a formal criminal 
complaint filed by the Elmore County Prosecuting Attorney. 

2. Civil Actions shall commence by filing a civil complaint by the Elmore County 
Prosecuting Attorney in the District Court of the State of Idaho having jurisdiction. 
The County may seek any relief deemed appropriate including, but not limited to, 
monetary damages, and 

3. Abatement. The County may abate any nuisance in Elmore County or any conditions 
caused by a violation of this Ordinance. The expenses associated with abatement and 
abatement proceedings (including any expenses arising from contractors hired by the 
County to perform said abatement, investigatory costs and costs of suit) shall be 
charged to the owner, occupant or person in charge or possession of the premises or 
property upon which the nuisance exists. The Prosecuting Attorney may seek 
recovery of these expenses and costs under I.C. §§ 31-604, 52-202 and 52-205. Said 
costs shall attach as a lien upon the subject property if unpaid. 

Section 6-3-4: Emergency Suspension of Permit: 

The County may exercise its responsibility to protect public health, safety, and welfare by 
immediately suspending an approved permit. If the Director finds that a public emergency 
exists as a result of non-compliance or lack of performance pertaining to a permit a written 
notification of suspension of the permit shall be sent by certified mail to the permit holder or 
by personal service or both. The permit is null and void following service of the notice of 
suspension and failure to obey the notice of suspension is a violation of this Ordinance. The 
permit holder shall have 30 days to contest the suspension or bring the permit into 
compliance. If the suspension is contested, the Commission shall conduct a public hearing in 
accordance with this Ordinance. Such hearing shall occur as soon a practical. The permit can 
only be reinstated by the County when the situation has been corrected or resolved or when 
the County determines that there was no sufficient basis for suspension. Any decision by the 
Commission can be appealed to the Board. 

Section 6-3-5: Revocation: 

All permits of this Ordinance are subject to revocation for non-compliance with their terms 
and conditions. If the Director determines that a permit has been violated he shall notify the 
permit holder of his intention to revoke the permit and provide the permit holder the 

Page 94 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



opportunity to contest the revocation. If the permit holder chooses not to contest the 
revocation of the permit the Commission shall revoke the permit during an open meeting. 

The permit holder notified by the Department of the intent to revoke shall have thirty (30) 
days to contest the revocation of the permit by filing a letter of contest and paying a fee 
established by the Board. The Commission shall conduct a public hearing in accordance 
with this Ordinance for all contested revocations. At such hearing the Commission shall hear 
evidence from the Director and any other party regarding the alleged violations and why the 
permit should be revoked. The permit holder shall have the opportunity to provide evidence 
contesting the violations and why the permit should not be revoked. After hearing evidence, 
if the Commission upholds the Director's determination of violation it may revoke or modify 
the permit or find that there was not sufficient evidence to revoke the permit. The decision 
from the Commission's public hearing may be appealed to the Board in accordance with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6-3-6: Investigation Fees and Work without a Permit: 

A. Investigation: Whenever any work, use or action has been commenced without first 
obtaining approval for which approval is required, and/or a permit for which a permit is 
required by this Ordinance, a special investigation shall be made by the Building Official 
and/or Director before approval, use, or action and/or a permit may be issued or resumed 
for such work. 

B. Fee: An investigation fee, for work without a permit, in addition to an application and/or 
the permit fee shall be collected whether or not an application and/or permit is then or 
subsequently issued. The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the application 
fee and/or permit fee required by the County. The payment of such investigation fee 
shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other provisions of this Ordinance 
nor from any penalty prescribed by this Ordinance or by law. 

Page 95 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Font: limes New Roman, 12 pt, Not Italic 

Formatted: Heading 2, Don't add space between paragraphs 
of the same style 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold 

Formatted: Font: Anal, 14 pt, Italic 

Formatted: Indent: Left: Cr, Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING anditr4D DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, 

CHAPTER 3 4-P4lEA1,8, ENFORCEMENT 
FAT-ENS-IONS , 	  

Sections: 

6-3-1: 
6-3-2a 	—Appall-IR-1e the Baord-oii-Deeiaions-uf-lhe-Connnissi on 
6-3-34---General Enforcement 
6-3-42: 	Zoning Permits 
6-3-53: 	Enforcement, Violations and Penalties 
6-3-4: 	Emmen cv Suspension of Permit  
6-3-5: 	Re%oai don  
6-3-6: 	Codo-Erafer-eeipent-OiNeer 
6 3-7 	Approval Condition,, 
6-3 8: 	Waiver 
6-3 9: 	Zoning-Ordinance As-dendrite/its 
6 3 10: 	Variances 
6-3-I-1÷ 	Time-Ex-tension 
6 3 12: 	Investigation Fees and Work without a Permit 

• 

Section 6-3-  :Appeats-to-Cormittssion-o. 	 'lie-Difetien 

aggrieved person4aving an-trdereat-iff-Fee4 
IffElleref-whiee-adw-F44Y effeclett*Y-a-deehe-DiPeeter-iffade-in 

appfeffiale-fee-afidappl-leatiewl Eater 

ioommil-en-aete-441ve-Cal4avri 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Font: Italic 

Forma

Formatted:  Don't add space between paragraphs of the tted:
style 

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt, Italic, Not Strikethrough 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1 
same style  

;1+441RElf-t+Pon-tHI•10104401-ffeeeklor•e-ef; 

Page 92 of 672 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Page 93 of 672 REV-I-2015-02-11 

Formatted:  Not Strikethrough 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

t

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between  11 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

2 1 	• 1 : • 	 : 	: : • : 

5.4roseb4trefaj,reeptireierrer-en-ahwJe-gillisefei•ien, 

• • 	! • • 	: 	• 

horitelike 

peiwiakiteel-ie#114.6-dxge44milT 

appeai-e-h•ie: 



poi-minx!. 

cd or if a  iu • apt-diet-alum is rataired. 

tleahi@ierr-te.the-lieweif 

reftmseleel-itt4a•epotiror 

D. Wriitert-Request; Fee: Reappearance before the Commissien-roaybe-rnade-hy-wfitten 

feenosidefoiefi-fegoest-ia-flowietir 

"1"9,111-0{4h"44"iiir 

4+1640ele.ataloo-lifi•iff.14.t}FOCk3441-FF 

Page 94 of 672 REV-1-2015-02-11 

Ceafitrissies-itatti-aeiiee: 

ileeifriao-appeoleeta, avaes-far-klie-appaal, 

•- 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style, Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian 
text, Don't adjust space between Asian text and numbers, 
Tab stops: 0.25", LIst tab 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25', Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
dmragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left  

C7
rmatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the  

same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



REV-1-2015-02-11 Page 95 of 672 

Formatted: No underline 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

' Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

- Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

' Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style  

: 	: 	 : • 	 : : 	: 

r-oftintled-lo-toa-entirety, 

deeisioa, 

Seclion-6-3-3: General Enforcement: 

A. Duty of Director: It shall be the duty of the Director to enforce these regulations and to 
issue citations and fines as necessary to enforce this Tit-leOrdinance. The Director shall 
also coordinate as necessary with the Prosecuting Attorney to enforce any violations or 
lack of compliance herewith. The Elmore County Sheriff, and his or her authorized 
representatives, shall have the authority to enforce this Tit-leOidinance and assist the 
Director in enforcement actions as set forth in Idaho Code and this TitleOrdinance. 

B. Sales Before Approval: No owner or agent of the owner of a parcel of land located in a 
proposed subdivision shall transfer or sell any such parcel before a final plat of such 
subdivision has been approved by the Board, in accordance with the provisions of these 
regulations and filed with the Elmore County {Clerk) Recorder of Deeds. 

C. Metes and Bounds Description: The subdivision of any lot or parcel of land, by the use o 
metes and bounds description for the purpose of sale, transfer or lease with the intent of 
evading these regulations, shall not be permitted. All such described subdivisions shall be 
subject to all of the requirements contained in these re2,ulationrxhis Ordinance.  

D. Issuance of Building Permit: No building permit shall be issued for the construction of 
any building or structure located on a parcel, lot or plat sold-in violation of the ovisie 
of4hose-feeolat-ionmhis Ordinance. 

E. Appropriate actions and proceedings may be taken at law or in equity to prevent any 
violation of these-Fogolot+oofrthis Ordinance to prevent unlawful construction, to recover 
damages, to restrain, correct or abate a violation, to prevent illegal occupancy of a 
building, structure or premises, and these remedies shall be in addition to the penalties 
described fibevein this Ordinance. 

Section 6-3-42: Zoning Permits: 

A. No construction or alteration shall commence until the Director has issued a zoning 
permit. If no structures are involved, no use shall commence until the Director has issued 
a zoning permit. 

B. No zoning permit shall be issued for any use on a property in violation of this 
ThleOrdinance or on a property that contains structures or uses in violation of this 

Page 96 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
t same style  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style  

_ -  -(Formatted: Font: limes New Roman 

i-itleOrdioanc.. Any zoning permit secured in violation of State or Federal law shall be 
invalid. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style C. Any application that requires issuance of a zoning permit as a condition of approval shall 

be deemed complete with the issuance of the zoning permit. This provision shall apply to 
prior approved applications with issued zoning permits. 

D. Zoning permits issued in conjunction with a change of use that are not associated with a ..-
building permit shall expire if the new use has not commenced within one year of the 
date of issuance of the zoning permit. 

E. The zoning permit may require inspections and approvals specified in the approval of thel • 
application, or conditions of approval. 

F. If the Director determines the conditions of the zoning permit have been violated, the 	.- - 
Director may impose a stop work order on a project until the violation has been remedied. 

G. No Zonin2 Permit shall be issued on property with delinquent or outsmnding taxes. 

Section 6-3-53: Enforcement, Violations and Penalties: 

A. Enforcement Duties. All Departments, officials and employees of Elmore County veste 
with the authority to issue permits shall conform to the provisions of this Ordinance and 
shall issue no permit or license for uses, buildings or purposes in conflict with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. Any such permit issued in conflict with the provisions of 
this Ordinance shall be null and void. The Director-of-Lhe-Cwowili-and-Develep-mem 
Department shall maintain a zoning enforcement program to promote the abatement of 
violations of this Ordinance and to provide assistance in the prosecution of such 
violations. It shall be the duty of the Director ef-die-Gfeved+-atki-Develepmem 
Depar-tmea-and/or the Building Official, or their authorized agent-(s), to enforce the 
provisions of this Ordinance pertaining to the erection, construction, reconstruction, 
moving, conversion, alteration, addition, location, or rat-41-giaising of any building or 
structure. It shall further be the duty of the Director-441+e-GpaY411-aftEl-Develeprileat 
14epatlfRent, or his/her authorized agent(s) to enforce the provisions of this ordinance 
pertaining to land use regulation, including compliance with the wrecking, salvage, 
and/or junk yard provisions. 

B. Enforcement. Enforcement of this Ordinance may be by criminal prosecution, a civil 
lawsuit or an abatement action. Selection of the enforcement procedure shall be at the 
sole discretion of the County and commencement of one procedure shall not preclude 
commencement of another. 

C. No owner, occupant, tenant, manager, person or entity having control of or a legal 
interest in a property within Elmore County shall maintain a nuisance in common law or 
nuisance as defined in this Ordinance on said property. 

Page 97 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

I  Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

i Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of 
same style  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



D. Violation of Ordinance Unlawful. Penalties and Restitution. It shall be unlawful for any 
owner, occupant, tenant, manager or any person or entity having control of or a legal 
interest in property to violate any requirement or duty imposed by this Ordinance. Upon 
Goiwietiescon vict ion of any violation of any of the provisions of this Ordinance such 
person shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), or 
by imprisonment for not more than six (6) months, or both such fine and imprisonment. 
Each and every day of continuing violation shall be considered a separate criminal 
offense. Upon conviction, violators shall be responsible for and pay all incurred 
investigation, prosecution and court costs as determined by the court having jurisdiction 
over the proceeding. 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

E. Administrative Procedure: Code Enforcement cases commence by a citizen complaint or 
any time knowledge of a possible violation becomes kitoyeknown to the County. 
Complainants may be anonymous or the complainant may leave a name and number so 
that they can be contacted in the future. Following commencement of the case  the 
following administrative procedure is followed: 

1. A site inspection is performed to verify that a violation exists on the property. 

2. The property owner, tenant, and/or occupant of the property where there exists a 
violation of the provisions of this Ordinance are then notified that a violation(s) 
exists. Such notice shall include (I) a description of the property where the violation 
exists, (2) a description of the details of the violation or violations and that there is a 
thirty (30) calendar day opportunity to correct the violation(s). This Notice may be 
made by personal service or certified mail, return receipt requested. The Code 
Enforcement Officer may extend the thirty (30) calendar day requirement for good 
cause, but under no circumstances shall the time period be extended for public health 
and safety issues for longer than one hundred twenty (120) calendar days. 

3. -A follow up inspection is performed to verify that the violation(s) has/have been 
corrected. 

4. If compliance cannot be achieved through administrative channels, or if the 
landowner, tenant and/or occupant of the property fails or refuses to respond to said 
Notice of Violation within the prescribed time period, the County may commence 
enforcement action. 

5. Compliance with the above administrative procedure either completely or partially is1  
at the discretion of the Director and/or Code Enforcement Officer and failure to 
follow these procedures shall not bar commencement of a criminal, civil, or 
abatement proceeding by the County. 

F. Enforcement Actions. 

Page 98 of 672 	 REV-1.2015-02-11 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



I . Criminal Actions shall commence by issuance of a misdemeanor criminal citation 
signed by the Code Enforcement Officer, Director of Growth and-Deveiepifterit, any 
county law enforcement officer, any county employee so authorized by the Board-e€ 
Gewriy-C-emmissieneFs or by a formal criminal complaint filed by the Elmore Count 
Prosecuting Attorney. 

2. Civil Actions shall commence by filing a civil complaint by the Elmore County 
Prosecuting Attorney in the District Court of the State of Idaho having jurisdiction. 
The County may seek any relief deemed appropriate including, but not limited to, 
monetary damages, and 

3. Abatement. The County may abate any nuisance in Elmore County or any conditions 
caused by a violation of this TitleOrdinance. The expenses associated with abateme 
and abatement proceedings (including any expenses arising from contractors hired by 
the County to perform said abatement, investigatory costs and costs of suit) shall be 
charged to the owner, occupant or person in charge or possession of the premises or 
property upon which the nuisance exists. The Prosecuting Attorney may seek 
recovery of these expenses and costs under I.C. §§ 31-604, 52-202 and 52-205. Said 
costs shall attach as a lien upon the subject property if unpaid. 

Section 6-3-6vAppPovalk-end.thous- 

Cousiittitioh: Thedeve-lopeths +lie-ditty of -eemlintkee with rem 

by 
land 	so as to con-form 	to-the physical and ecoimmical dcvelopmeft1ret the County 	4eThe 

at large: 

See-Hen 	74: Emergency Suspension of Permit: 

The County may exercise its responsibility to protect public health, safety, and welfare by 
immediately suspending an approved permit. If the Director finds that a public emergency 
exists as a result of non-compliance or lack of performance pertaining to a permit a written 
notification of suspension of the permit shall be sent by certified mail to the permit holder or 
by personal service or both. The permit is null and void following service of the notice of 
suspension and failure to obey the notice of suspension is a violation of this Ordinance. The 
permit holder shall have 30 days to contest the suspension or bring the permit into 
compliance. If the suspension is contested, the Commission shall conduct a public hearing i 
accordance with this efflineiteeOrclmance. Such hearing shall occur as soon a practical. The 
permit can only be reinstated by the County when the situation has been corrected or 
resolved or when the County determines that there was no sufficient basis for 
suspension. Any decision by the Commission can be appealed to the Board. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 99 of 672 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Section 6-3-85: Revocation: 

All permits of this efeliffaivee0iiiinance are subject to revocation for non-compliance with 
their terms and conditions. If the Director determines that a permit has been violated he shal 
notify the permit holder of his intention to revoke the permit and provide the permit holder 
the opportunity to contest the revocation. If the permit holder chooses not to contest the 
revocation of the permit the Commission shall revoke the permit during an open meeting. 

The permit holder notified by the depaameolDepaitment of the intent to revoke shall have 
thirty (30) days to contest the revocation of the permit by filing a letter of contest and paying 
a fee established by the Board. The Commission shall conduct a public hearing in 
accordance with this efelifrafteethdmance for all contested revocations. At such hearing the 
Commission shall hear evidence from the Director and any other party regarding the alleged 
violations and why the permit should be revoked. The permit holder shall have the 
opportunity to provide evidence contesting the violations and why the permit should not be 
revoked. After hearing evidence, if the Commission upholds the Director's determination of 
violation it may revoke or modify the permit or find that there was not sufficient evidence to 
revoke the permit. The decision from the Commission's public hearing may be appealed to 
the Board in accordance with the provisions of this efEliffoneeOrclinance. 

Section 6-3-9t4Vaiveet 

appl-imatfaa-tienionstratethat4he-waivers 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, 12 pt, Bold, Underline, 
Highlight 

Formatted: Justified, Don't add space between paragraphs 
of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 100 of 672 REV-1-2015.02-11 



Seetiorrir 	3-101-Zon anee-gormendoreiars* 

1.—Preeerlst 

 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

 

: 	 ; 	; 	- 	; 	; • • : 	; 	; ; 	- 	; : —  • 

• 

C-effinirtni+iet-Pleireed Unit Development* ariti Pleeited Ui+ii-Develepmeer Dimriers* 
• : :   k-eriefreoftferenee-with-414e-Direeteriirief 

. ' 	• • • 	• 	• 	• 	• 

DevelorrnerFt-Deparrmeo, 

ertlifirteee-ameotimeot7 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

full-irwes-ritetion- rod- s-hel-17-at-th 041e-hearing. review ille-applieatien-In-er-der 	togredv 
.-_to 	« A... 

Page 101 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 



{Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1 
s ame style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

tFormatted: Font: Italic 

 

 

( 
Formatted: levell, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style 

Page 102 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 

1.  same style 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Not Bold, No 
underline, Not Highlight 

Formatted: leve12, Left, Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt, Italic 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

emi-appleved-develermeo4-(e alig.181.9.4, 

41,—Stentisfelto 

2. The-appheant-er owner-fer-an-approved final plat-may-apply-for-one 	(1) EifTle 
	• 

emea-sio-a-f-oFeactiahaseof 
te-exeeefl-ou-&-year-7 

fallew.ing-Fia4ifirm 

• 

#013#044-6-2-13: Investigation Fees and Work without a Permit: 

A. Investigation: Whenever any work, use or action has been commenced without first 
obtaining a-approval for which approval is required, and/or a permit for which a permit is. 
required by 
Regulat-iefis-ef-L-4mer-e-Couetythis Ordinance, a special investigation shall be made by th 
Building Official and/or-Pkta-ftia-g-aatl-Zefkg Director before approval, use, or action 
and/or a permit may be issued or resumed for such work. 

B. Fee: An investigation fee,  for woik without a pci mit, in addition to an application and/otl  
the permit fee shall be collected whether or not an application and/or permit is then or 
subsequently issued. The investigation fee shall be equal to the amount of the application 
fee and/or permit fee required by the adefaed-Fra-i-Idi.lig-ce.de-&fraretapel-eF4hePI-aani-ag 

-uuniv. The payment of 
such investigation fee shall not exempt any person from compliance with all other 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 103 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 



provisions of this TitleOrdinance nor from any penalty prescribed by this TitleOrdinance 
or by law. 

Page 104 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

CHAPTER 4 — APPLICATION PROCEDURES AND FEES 

Sections: 

6-4-1: 	Purpose 
6-4-2: 	Application Requirements and Fees 
6-4-3: 	Neighborhood Meetings 
6-4-4: 	Notice to Agencies and Political Subdivisions 
6-4-5: 	Notice to Public 
6-4-6: 	Decision by the Director 
6-4-7: 	Appeals to Commission on Decisions of the Director 
6-4-8: 	Decision by the Hearings Examiner 
6-4-9: 	Decision by the Commission 
6-4-10: 	Appeals to the Board on Decisions of the Commission or Hearing 

Examiner 
6-4-11: 	Decision by the Board 
6-4-12: 	Reconsideration by the Board 
6-4-13: 	Waiver 
6-4-14: 	Variance 
6-4-15: 	Zoning Map Amendment 
6-4-16: 	Zoning Text Amendment 
6-4-17: 	Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
6-4-18: 	Time Extensions 

Section 6-4-1: Purpose: 

A. The purpose of this Chapter is to provide procedures for all zoning and related 
applications covered by this Ordinance and to amend the Comprehensive Plan. 

Section 6-4-2: Application Requirements and Fees: 

A. Pre-application Requirements: All persons desiring to make application for permits shall 
first schedule a pre-application meeting with the Director. Pre-application meetings are 
required to ensure proper applications, procedures and notifications are followed. The 
Director may invite other agencies, political subdivision or affected parties to the pre-
application meeting. The Director may determine if any additional pre-application 
meetings are required. 

Page 96 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



B. Application Requirements: All persons making application for permits and other matters 
herein referred to shall be required to submit to the Director an application on forms 
provided by the Department and accompanied by an application fee as set forth in 
subsection F of this section. No application shall be considered as accepted by the 
Director unless it is complete with all required information. 

C. Combining of Applications: Where practical, the Director, Commission, or Board may 
combine related applications for the convenience of applicants. [When State of Federal 
approval is required the County may require State and Federal approvals prior to 
accepting applications.] 

D. Date of Application Acceptance: The date of acceptance of an application shall be the 
date of the letter sent by the Department notifying the applicant that the Director has 
received payment of the required fee and all of the required submittal information 
pursuant to this Ordinance. No application will be accepted if the property has 
outstanding or delinquent taxes. 

E. Hearings: A public hearing shall be conducted in accordance with adopted by-laws, Idaho 
Code and this Ordinance. 

F. Fees: The Board shall, by resolution, establish fees for all applications, permits or 
petitions authorized by this Ordinance. 

G. Tabled applications: Applications that have been tabled for more than one (1) year will 
be considered withdrawn. 

H. Re-submittal: No application that has been denied by the Director, the Commission, or 
the Board shall be resubmitted, in the same form for the same use, within one year from 
the date of denial. The Director may waive the one (1) year requirement and accept a new 
application, where the subject property is affected by amendments to the applicable 
Comprehensive Plan or to this Ordinance. 

Section 6-4-3: Neighborhood Meetings: 

A. Applicants shall conduct a neighborhood meeting for Comprehensive Plan amendments, 
variances, conditional uses, Ordinance amendments, expansions or extensions of 
nonconforming uses, subdivisions or as otherwise required by the Director. 

B. It shall be the sole duty of the applicant to provide written notice to all property owners 
or purchasers of record owning property within the radius required in this Ordinance of 
the exterior boundary of the application property and to all registered neighborhood 
associations and political subdivisions deemed appropriate by the Director. The 
Department will provide applicants the proper notice list. Notice of a neighborhood 
meeting shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, mailed radius notices already required 
by this Ordinance. Notice of neighborhood meeting must be mailed at least ten (10) days 
prior to the date of the neighborhood meeting. 

Page 97 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



C. The purpose of the neighborhood meeting shall be to review the proposed project. 

1. The meeting shall be on a weekend between ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. and seven 
o'clock (7:00) P.M. or on a weekday between six o'clock (6:00) P.M. and eight 
o'clock (8:00) P.M. The meeting shall not be on a holiday, a holiday weekend, or the 
day before a holiday or holiday weekend. 

2. The meeting shall be held at one of the following locations: 

a. On the subject property; or 

b. At the nearest available public meeting place including, but not limited to, fire 
station, library, or community center; or 

c. At an office space with suitable meeting facilities if such facilities are within a 
one-mile radius of the nearest public meeting place. 

D. The neighborhood meeting shall be conducted prior to submitting the application. 

E. The neighborhood meeting shall not be conducted more than six (6) months prior to 
submitting the application. 

F. The application materials shall include written verification of the neighborhood meeting 
on the forms provided by the Department. 

Section 6-4-4: Notice to Agencies and Political Subdivisions: 

A. The Director shall send a summary of development applications to applicable agencies, 
as determined by the Director. The notice shall be sent at least fifteen (15) calendar days 
prior to the public hearing. 

B. The Director shall send a summary of petitions for Comprehensive Plan amendments and 
applications for Ordinance amendments to applicable agencies and political subdivisions 
as referenced in Idaho Code section 67-6509(a). The notice shall be sent at least fifteen 
(15) days prior to the public hearing. 

C. Applications within an Area of City Impact shall be noticed in accordance with the 
regulations of this Ordinance. 

D. Applications for development within five (5) miles of the 115db Mean Noise Line 
surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area will be 
forwarded to the Idaho Army National Guard for review and comment at least fifteen 15 
days prior to a hearing before the Commission. 

Page 98 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Section 6-4-5: Notice to Public: 

A. Legal Notice: At least fifteen (15) days prior to the public hearing, the Director shall 
publish a notice of the time and place and a summary of the application in the official 
newspaper of general circulation in the County. 

B. Site Notice: At least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing, the Director shall post a 
notice on the premises of the application, except for Ordinance text amendments or 
Comprehensive Plan amendments. 

C. Radius Notice: At least seven (7) days prior to the public hearing, the Director shall send 
a notice of the time and place, and a summary of the application to property owners or 
purchasers of record (as listed in the current records of the Elmore County Assessor) 
owning property within one thousand (1000') feet of the property being considered. The 
Director may determine, or other applications provided for in this Ordinance may require, 
that notices be sent to property owners or purchasers of record whose properties are 
further than one thousand (1000') feet from the external boundaries of the property upon 
which the application is located. 

D. Alternate Forms of Notice: When posted or mailed notice is required of two hundred 
(200) or more property owners or purchasers of record, alternate forms of notice may be 
provided as follows: 

1. Notice of the time and place of the hearing and summary of the proposal shall be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation within the County, not less than seven 
(7) days prior to the hearing. 

2. Multiple site notices, the quantity determined by the Director, shall be posted not less 
than seven (7) days prior to the hearing, in locations of high public uses within the 
affected areas of the County including post offices and major retail establishments 
including all external boundaries of the subject property. 

3. At least seven (7) days prior to the hearing, a notice shall be made available to the 
local newspapers, radio, and television stations servicing the County for use as a 
public service announcement. 

4. All non-owner occupied property shall receive written notice at least seven (7) days 
prior to the hearing. 

E. Public Service Announcement: In the case of amendments to this Ordinance and the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Director shall issue a notice to other newspapers and radio 
stations serving the jurisdiction for use as a public service announcement prior to the 
public hearing. 

Page 99 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



F. Applicants who propose development within five (5) miles of the 115db Mean Noise 
Line surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area will be 
provided the following notice by the Department: 

Applicant is advised that the property may be located near a military installation that 
conducts flight operations, munitions testing, or military operations that may result in 
high noise levels, traffic, and dust at all hours of the day throughout the year. Applicant 
should contact the public affairs office of the nearest military installation to determine 
whether the property may be impacted by testing or operations at the installation. 

Any new deeds resulting from development within five (5) miles of the 115db Mean 
Noise Line surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area 
shall include the above notice. 

Section 6-4-6: Decision by the Director: 

A. Following the acceptance of an application, the Director shall act upon the application. 
Failure of the Director to act upon an application shall be deemed a denial of the 
application. 

B. The Director may defer a decision if additional information is required to make a 
decision. If the application is tabled or deferred for more than one year it shall be 
considered withdrawn. 

C. The Director may require conditions of approval that are deemed necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare and prevent undue adverse impacts on surrounding 
properties. 

D. The Director shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of law in 
accordance with Idaho Code section 67-6519 stating the reasons for the decision reached. 
All conditions of approval shall be attached to the written decision. 

Section 6-4-7: Appeals to Commission on Decisions of the Director: 

A. Appeal to Commission: Any affected or aggrieved person having an interest in real 
property which may be adversely affected by a decision of the Director made in 
interpreting or enforcing this Ordinance, may appeal such a decision to the Commission 
by filing a written notice of appeal. A written notice shall be made by submitting the 
appropriate fee and application to the Director within ten (10) calendar days of the date of 
such decision. Appeals shall be based on one of the following: 

1. The decision was in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions; or 

2. In excess of the statutory authority of the agency; or 

Page 100 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



3. Made upon unlawful procedure; or 

4. Not supported by substantial evidence on the record as a whole; or 

5. Arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion. 

B. Hearing by Commission: The Commission shall hold a public hearing on all appeals from 
decisions of the Director after notice has been given in accordance with this Ordinance. 
The public record shall remain open and the Commission may accept new additional 
material and testimony. 

C. Decision by Commission: After the Public hearing, the Commission shall, enter a written 
order-affirming, reversing or modifying the Director's decision. The order shall also 
contain the reasons for the Commission's decision. 

Section 6-4-8: Decision by the Hearings Examiner: 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Hearings Examiner after the Director 
accepts an application. Prior to the public hearing, public notice shall be provided as set 
forth in this Ordinance. 

B. The Hearings Examiner shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the 
procedures of this Ordinance. 

C. The Hearings Examiner may require conditions of approval that he or she deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue 
adverse impacts on surrounding properties. 

D. The Hearings Examiner shall provide the applicant a written decision in accordance with 
Idaho Code sections 67-6520 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for the decision. Conditions 
of approval, if any, shall be attached to the written decision. 

Section 6-4-9: Decision by the Commission: 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Commission after the Director accepts 
an application. Prior to the public hearing, public notice shall be provided as set forth in 
this Ordinance. 

B. The Commission shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the procedures of 
this Ordinance. The Commission may continue the hearing if it determines in its 
discretion that additional hearings are necessary. The Commission, however, must issue a 
decision or recommendation as is applicable no later than one hundred twenty (120) days 
after the closing of the public hearing. Failure of the Commission to issue a decision or 

Page 101 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



recommendation shall be deemed a denial or a recommendation of denial of the 
application. 

C. Following the public hearing, if the Commission makes a material change to any 
application, further notice and hearing shall be provided in accordance with the 
regulations of this Ordinance. 

D. The Commission may require or recommend conditions of approval that it deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue 
adverse impacts on surrounding properties. 

E. The Commission shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of 
law in accordance with Idaho Code sections 67-6519 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for 
the decision or recommendation reached. Conditions of approval shall be attached to the 
written decision or recommendation. For applications where the Commission is acting as 
a recommending body, the Commission shall forward their recommendation to the 
Board. 

F. For applications where a decision or recommendation from the Commission is required 
by this Ordinance, the Commission shall file a written report with the Clerk of the Board 
stating the findings and action taken by the Commission. 

Section 6-4-10: Appeals to the Board on Decisions of the Commission or Hearing 
Examiner: 

A. Appeal and Reconsideration: Any affected or aggrieved person having an interest in real 
property which may be adversely affected by the issuance or denial of a permit 
authorizing development or use by any final action of the Commission may either appeal 
the decision to the Board and/or request reconsideration by the Commission. 

B. Request for Reconsideration on Commission Decision: Upon request of the applicant or 
an aggrieved party, the application may be reconsidered by the Commission. 
Reconsideration before the Commission may be granted for good cause. The Commission 
shall only consider such reconsideration requests once. Good cause includes but is not 
limited to: 

1. The party requesting reconsideration has new or additional relevant information; and 

2. The relevant information was not previously presented and is in response to 
something brought up at the previous hearing; and 

3. The information was not previously available. 

Page 102 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



C. Process for Reconsideration: A request for reconsideration shall include supporting 
information and may be made at any time prior to the deadline for filing an appeal as 
provided in this section. 

1. A decision by the Commission to deny or approve the reconsideration is not 
appealable. 

2. Reappearance before the Commission shall be on the appropriate application and 
submitted to the Director with fees as adopted by the Board. This fee shall be 
refunded if the reconsideration request is denied. 

3. The Director will confer with the Commission, if the requested changes would not 
materially affect the Commission's decision, a reconsideration hearing may be 
permitted. 

4. If the applicant has modified the application, the Commission shall determine if the 
revised application shall be reconsidered or if a new application is required. 

5. If the reconsideration hearing is granted, the time to appeal and any pending appeal to 
be heard before the Commission shall be stayed. 

6. The applicant may still exercise applicant's rights to further appeal the Commission's 
decision to the Board. 

7. If reconsideration is granted and the appeal is withdrawn, any appeal fee shall be 
refunded in its entirety. 

D. Decision to Appeal: Any person aggrieved by a decision of the Commission may appeal 
such a decision to the Board by filing a written notice of appeal. Appeals shall be based 
on one of the following: 

1. The decision was in violation of constitutional or statutory provisions; or 

2. In excess of the statutory authority of the agency; or 

3. Made upon unlawful procedure; or 

4. Not supported by substantial evidence on the record as a whole; or 

5. Arbitrary, capricious, or an abuse of discretion. 

E. An appeal shall be made by submitting the appropriate application and fee to the Director 
ten (10) days of the Commission's final action. 

F. Notice of Appeal: The notice of appeal shall state the date and the substance of the 
decision appealed and the grounds for the appeal. 

Page 103 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



G. Hearing by The Board: The Board shall conduct a public hearing in accordance to Idaho 
Code and this Ordinance. The Board shall publish a notice specifying the time, date and 
place of the public hearing for the appeal and stating the subject of the appeal. The notice 
shall be published once in the newspaper of general circulation at least fifteen (15) days 
prior to the hearing. In addition, the same notice requirements as were applicable to the 
Commission hearing, if any, at which the decision being appealed was made shall be met. 
The public record shall remain open and the Board may receive additional information 
and testimony. Only the matters set forth in the appeal shall be considered by the Board. 
The appeal hearing and review shall be a de novo review and hearing, but the Board may 
consider and incorporate the record and decision from the Commission in its 
deliberations and decision. 

H. Decision by The Board: The Board shall enter an order after the hearing affirming, 
reversing or modifying the Commission's decision. The order shall contain a statement of 
the reasons for the Board's decision and shall be served on all parties to the appeal. On its 
own motion, the Board may, within fourteen (14) days of issuing a written decision, 
reconsider that decision. 

Section 6-4-11: Decision by the Board: 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Board after the Director accepts an 
application or after the Commission makes a recommendation (if applicable). Prior to the 
public hearing, public notice shall be provided as set forth in this Ordinance and State 
law. 

B. The Board shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the procedures of this 
Ordinance. 

C. Following the public hearing, if the Board makes a material change to a Comprehensive 
Plan amendment application or Ordinance amendment application, further notice and 
hearing shall be provided in accordance with the regulations of this Ordinance. 

D. The Board may require conditions of approval that it deems necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue adverse impacts on 
surrounding properties. This regulation shall not apply to applications for Comprehensive 
Plan amendments or Ordinance text amendments. 

E. The'Board shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of law in 
accordance with Idaho Code sections 67-6519 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for the 
decision. Conditions of approval, if any, shall be attached to the written decision. 

F. Following the approval of a Comprehensive Plan amendment; the Board shall adopt a 
resolution adopting the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 104 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



G. Following the approval of an Ordinance amendment, the Board shall adopt an ordinance 
and, within thirty (30) days, publish a summary of the ordinance in the official newspaper 
of general circulation in the County. 

Section 6-4-12: Reconsideration by the Board 

A. Request for Reconsideration On Board's Decision: The applicant or an aggrieved party, 
may file an application for reconsideration by the Board within fourteen (14) days of the 
Board's final decision in accordance with Idaho Code section 67-6535(2)(b) and this 
Ordinance. Reconsideration before the Board may be granted for good cause. The Board 
shall only consider such reconsideration requests once. Good cause includes but is not 
limited to: 

1. The party requesting reconsideration has relevant information; and 

2. The relevant information was not previously presented and is in response to 
something brought up at the previous hearing; and 

3. The information was not previously available. 

B. Process: A request for reconsideration shall include supporting information and may be 
made at any time prior to the fourteen (14) day deadline for filing. 

1. A decision by the Board to deny or approve the reconsideration is not appealable. 

2. Reappearance before the Board shall be made by written request and application to 
the Director and shall include a fee as adopted by the Board. This fee shall be 
refunded if the reconsideration is denied. 

3. The Director will confer with the Board, if the requested changes would not 
materially affect the Board's decision, a reconsideration hearing may be permitted. 

4. If the applicant has modified the application, the Board shall determine if the revised 
application shall be reconsidered or if a new application is required. 

5. The applicant may still exercise applicant's rights to further appeal the Board's 
decision. 

6. If reconsideration is granted the Board shall schedule, notice and conduct a public 
hearing in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

Section 6-4-13: Waiver: 

Page 105 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



The Director has the authority to determine, on a case-by-case basis if a partial waiver is 
warranted in a unique situation. The maximum waiver authority granted to the Director is ten 
(10%) percent of the Ordinance requirements. The Director can only issue an administrative 
waiver if the waiver does not negatively affect public health and safety, meet the required 
findings of Ordinance section 6-4-13.A and does not deviate from the intent of this 
Ordinance. 

A. The Hearing Examiner, Commission or Board, in a public hearing, may approve a waiver 
greater than ten (10%) percent from strict compliance with a design standard in this 
Ordinance if an applicant can demonstrate that the waiver: 

1. Is based on conditions unique to the property in question and not applicable generally 
to other property. The property in question demonstrates an extraordinary hardship 
related to a physical characteristics, surroundings or topographic features; and 

2. Is not detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare; and 

3. Is not injurious to the property of others physically or financially; and 

4. Does not in any way nullify any other provision of this Ordinance or the Elmore 
County zoning map; and 

5. That the granting of a waiver would better serve an alternative proposal where the 
applicant can demonstrate that the alternative proposal suggested would better serve 
the intended use or public. 

B. Waivers may also be granted if other Federal, State or local agencies have jurisdiction 
over the subject matter and they have already issued a waiver that applies to the waiver 
application before Elmore County. 

Section 6-4-14: Variances: 

Certain uses may require additional variance requirements in other sections of the Ordinance. 

A. Process: 

1. The applicant shall complete a pre-application conference with the Director prior to 
submittal of an application for a variance; and 

2. An application and fees shall be submitted to the Director on forms provided by the 
Department; and 

3. The Commission and Board shall both conduct public hearings in accordance with 
Idaho Code and this Ordinance and apply the standard listed in subsection B of this 
section and the findings listed in subsection C of this section to review the variance. 

Page 106 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



B. Standard: The variance shall comply with Idaho Code section 67-6516. 

C. Required Findings: In order to grant a variance, the Board shall make the following 
findings: 

1. The variance shall not grant a right or special privilege that is not otherwise allowed 
in the base zone; and 

2. The variance relieves an undue hardship due to characteristics of the site; and 

3. The variance shall not be detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare. 

Section 6-4-15 Zoning Map Amendments: 

A. Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment requests shall be in compliance with this Ordinance 
and Comprehensive Plan. 

B. Process: Zoning Map Amendment requests shall be subject to a public hearing, review, 
and approval subject to the regulations of this Ordinance. The process shall be as follows: 

1. An application and fees, as set forth in this Ordinance, shall be submitted to the 
Director on forms provided by the Department. 

2. A Development Agreement Application and approval may be required for all Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment requests in compliance with this Ordinance. 

C. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Initiated by the Board: The Board may propose a Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment in compliance with this Chapter, except that amendments 
initiated by the Board may not require a Development Agreement. 

D. Zoning Map Amendment Standards: 

1. The Land Use / Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment Matrix shall identify the zoning 
districts that would be permissible through a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (re-
zone) request and approval within each land use designation. 

2. Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (re-zone) requests should be consistent with the 
Land Use / Zoning Map Amendment Matrix and the Comprehensive Plan where 
Commercial, Industrial Zones and Residential Zones are not arbitrarily being rezoned 
without first updating the Elmore County Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map. 

E. Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the Commission, the Board shall make a 
full investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the Zoning Ordinance Map 

Page 107 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Amendment request and Development Agreement. The Board shall make the following 
findings: 

1. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment complies with the regulations outlined for 
this Chapter; and 

2. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety and welfare; and 

3. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment request is in compliance with the Land 
Use/Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment Matrix; and 

4. The Development Agreement meets the requirements of this Ordinance; and 

5. That the approval by the Board, of a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment request 
would not "impede" (1)  the normal flow of development; and 

Note: (1)  For the purpose of this Chapter and required finding (number 5 listed 
above), the definition of "Impede" shall be the interference with an existing or 
proposed activity that would delay or cause modification to the progress of normal 
development and/or development trends, or the causing of delays or interference with 
the normal flow of progress and/or development trends. 

6. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment is not in conflict with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

F. Approval and Reversal of Action: If the Board approves a Zoning Ordinance Map 
Amendment pursuant to a request, the Board shall not subsequently reverse its action or 
otherwise change the zoning classification as set forth in Idaho Code Section 67-6511(d). 

G. Final approval of a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment shall be contingent upon an 
executed and recorded development agreement in compliance with this Chapter and 
Ordinance, except that amendments initiated by the Board may not require a 
Development Agreement. 

H. Following the approval of Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment, the Board shall adopt an 
Ordinance, and within thirty (30) days, publish a summary of the Ordinance and legal 
description in the official newspaper of general circulation in the County. 

Page 108 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Table 6-4-15 
Land Use / Zoning Map Amendment Matrix 

                                     

                                     

     

Rec 

  

RR 

  

Cl 

  

C2 

 

M 

  

M2 

 

PAZ 

  

ABHZ 

  

ACZ 

  

PC 

  

PUD 

 

PUDD 

 

 

Current Zoning 

                       

                                    

                                     

                                     

                                     

District / Land Use 
Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) Opportunities 

General 
Agriculture/Grazing/Forest 
(Ag) 

- 1 1 1 I I I 1 - I 1 1 1 

Recreation / Tourism (Rec) - - 1 I 1 - 1 -I - 1 1 

Rural Residential (RR/MU) - - I 1 I 

Neighborhood Commercial
(C1) 

- 1 i - 1 - - - - .1 1 1 

Highway/Interstate 
Commercial (C2) 

- - - 1 - 1 1 - - .1 1 1 

Light 
Industrial/Manufacturing 
(M1)  

1 - - - 1 - 1 - - - 1 1 1 

Heavy 
Industrial/Manufacturing 
(M2)  

1 - - - I I - - - - 1 1 V 

Public Airport Hazard Zone 
(PAZ) 

1 1 1 - - - - - - - - - 

Air Base Hazard Zone 
(ABHZ) - - -- - - - -- - - 
Air Base Commercial Zone 
(ACZ) 

1 - - 1 1 - - - - - 
- - - 

Planned Community (PC) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Planned Unit Development 
(PUD) - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

Planned Unit Development 
District (PUDD) 

- - - - . . - - - - - - - 

Section 6-4-16: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments: 

A. Process: 

1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Initiated by Board: The Board may propose to 
amend this Ordinance following notice and public hearing procedures in compliance 
with this Ordinance. 

2. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment Initiated by Property Owner: The applicant shall 
complete a pre-application conference with the Director prior to submittal of an 
application for a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. An application and fees shall 
be submitted to the Director on forms provided by the Department. 

Page 109 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



3. Application: The Commission and Board shall conduct public hearings required by 
Idaho Code and this Ordinance. The Board shall apply the findings listed in 
subsection B of this section to review the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 

B. Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the Commission, the Board shall make a 
full investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant 
a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, the Board shall make the following findings: 

1. The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment complies with the applicable 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

2. The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment complies with the regulations outlined for 
the proposed base zone, specifically the purpose statement; and 

3. The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety, and welfare; and 

4. The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon 
the delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services within 
the planning jurisdiction including, but not limited to, school districts. 

5. Following the approval of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, the Board shall adopt 
an Ordinance, and within thirty (30) days, publish a summary of the Ordinance in the 
official newspaper of general circulation in the County. 

Section 6-4-18: Time Extension: 

The Director shall review an application for a time extension. The time extension shall 
commence from the date of expiration of the previous approval, except in the case of an 
appeal of a Board approval, when the time extension shall commence from the final 
resolution of such appeal. 

A. Process: 

1. An application and fees shall be submitted to the Director on forms provided by the 
Department. 

a. The application shall include a written request indicating the need for a time 
extension. 

b. The application shall be prior to expiration date of the original approval. 

2. At the discretion of the Director, other agencies may be notified of the time extension 
request in order to solicit their comments and recommendations for consideration. 

Page 110 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



3. The Director shall apply the standards listed in subsection B of this section and the 
findings listed in subsection C of this section to review the time extension. 

4. The Director may impose additional conditions in an approval of a time extension for 
an approved development (excluding final plats). 

B. Standards: 

1. The applicant or owner for an approved development may apply for a one (1) time 
extension for a period not to exceed one (1) year, unless otherwise approved by the 
Director, Commission and/or Board. 

C. Required Findings: 

1. The time extension meets the standards listed in subsection B of this section; and 

2. The applicant and/or owner have adequately justified the need for a time extension. 

Page 111 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the - 
same style 

TITLE 6 
ELMORE COUNTY 

ZONING andAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE, 

CHAPTER 4 — APPLICATION PROCEDURES AND FEES 

Sections: 

6-4-1: 	Purpose 
6-4-2: 	Application Requirements and Fees 
6-4-3: 	Neighborhood Meetings 
6-4-4: 	Notice to Agencies and Political Subdivisions 
6-4-5: 	Notice to Public 
6-4-6: 	Decision by the Director 
6-4-7: 	Deeicaen*Appeals to Commission on Decisions of the Knifings 
Examiner Director 
6-4-8: 	Decision by the GemmissionHearings Examiner 
6-4-9: 	Decision by the Commission 
6-4-10: 	Appeals to the Board on Decisions of the Commission or Hearing 

Examiner 
6-4-11: 	Decision bN the  Board 

6-4-12: 	Reconsideration 1)1 the Board  
6-4-13: 	Waiver 
6-4-14: 	Variance 
6-4-15: 	Zoning Map Amendment  
6-4-16: 	Zoning Text Amendment 
6-4-17: 	Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
6-4-18: 	Time Extensions  

FFormatted:  English (United States) 

Formatted: Font: Italic 

1_7
rmatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 

same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

-J Formatted: Font: Bold 

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between paragraphs oft 
the same style 

Section 6-4-1: Purpose: 

A. The purpose of this Chapter is to provide procedures for all zoning and related 
applications covered by this T-ideOrdinancc and-petit-inn to amend the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Section 6-4-2: Application Requirements and Fees: 

A: A. Pre-application Rectuirements: All persons desirinsa to make application for permits 
shall first schedule a pre-t plication meeting with the Director. Pre-application meeting, 
ate required to ensuie proper201 icat ions. procedures and notifications arc followed. 

Page 105 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



The Director tri* invite other agencies. political subdivision or affected parties to the  
pre-application meeting. The Director may determine if any additional pre-application 
meetings are rcuuired. 

B. Application Requirements: All persons making application for permits and other matters 
herein referred to shall be required to submit to the Director an application on forms 
provided by the Gfewth-and-Deelepnient-Department and accompanied by an 
application fee as set forth in subsection EF of this section. No application shall be 
considered as accepted by the Director unless it is complete with all required information 

BC. 	Combining of Applications: Where practical, the Director, Commission, or Board 
may combine related applications for the convenience of applicants. [When State of 
Federal approval is required the County may requite State and Federal  trgewies-shottid 
ineke-evert-eff-onapprovals  prior to  eecnbine-or--e-oealinate Fe 	 re 
Cowity.accepting applications. I 

L. Date of Application Acceptance: The date of acceptance of an application shall be the 
date of the letter sent by the Gr-eivethaer+el-Dwoelepmem-Department notifying the 
applicant that the Director has received payment of the required fee and all of the 
required submittal information pursuant to this  Titter  ekeleding-Illanned-Geniffien-ity;  
P4anned Unit Developmen-trand-P4anne€1-14-nit-Development-DistFiet-appliaations as 
speeifteekin-this--TitleOrdinance.  No application will be accepted if the property has 
outstanding or delinquent taxes. 

DE. 	Hearings: A public hearing shall be conducted in accordance with adorned by-laws s. 
Idaho Code and this TilleOt dinan ce. 

RE Fees: The Board shall, by resolution, establish fees for all  tBfiiiitt  applications, permits o 
petitions authorized by this 
Ordinance.  

FIG. Tabled applications: Applications that have been tabled for more than one ( I) year will 
he considered withdrawn. 

H. Re-submittal: No application that has been denied by the Director, the Commission, or 
the Board shall be resubmitted, in the same form for the same use, within one year from 
the date of denial. The Director may waive the one (1) year requirement and accept a new 
application, where the subject property is affected by amendments to the applicable 
Comprehensive Plan or to this TitleOrdinance. 

Section 6-4-3: Neighborhood Meetings: 

A. Applicants shall conduct a neighborhood meeting for Comprehensive Plan amendments, 
variances, conditional uses, coning 	amendments, expansions or 
extensions of nonconforming uses,  asubdivisionsr 

Page 106 of 672 	 REV-1-2015.02-11 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 	Hanging: 0.25", Don't add 	1 
space between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



- {Formatted: No underline 

{  Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

u 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

-Plunixed-tlaif-Develeisnuen+, ,uftd121 	lit 1)evelepnieni-DistfieFuppliectileas or as 
peeified-in-eids--Tideotherwise required by the Director. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

B. It shall be the sole duty of the applicant to provide written notice to all property owners — - 
or purchasers of record owning property within the radius required in this Tit-leOidinane  
of the exterior boundary of the application property and to all registered neighborhood 
associations and political subdivisions  deemed appropriate by the Director. The 
Department will provide applicants the proper notice list.  Notice of a neighborhood 
meeting shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, mailed radius notices already required 
by this TideOrdinancq. Notice of neighborhood meeting must be mailed at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of the neighborhood meeting., 	  

C. The purpose of the neighborhood meeting shall be to review the proposed project. 

I. The meeting shall be on a weekend between ten o'clock (10:00) A.M. and seven 
o'clock (7:00) P.M. or on a weekday between six o'clock (6:00) P.M. and eight 
o'clock (8:00) P.M. The meeting shall not be on a holiday, a holiday weekend, or the 
day before a holiday or holiday weekend. 

2. The meeting shall be held at one of the following locations, excluding Planned 

pp4ica4ion•x-a9-speelfied-in-thkrTille: 

a. On the subject property; or 

b. At the nearest available public meeting place including, but not limited to, fire 
station, library, or community center; or 

c. At an office space with suitable meeting facilities if such facilities are within a 
one-mile radius of the nearest public meeting place. 

D. The neighborhood meeting shall be conducted prior to ceccptanee ofsubmittin2 the 
application. 

E. The neighborhood meeting shall not be conducted more than six (6) months prior to 
neeeplaftee-efsubminkris the application. 

F. The application materials shall include written verification of the neighborhood meeting 
on the forms provided by the CiFes4h-und-IDevtgarmen4-Department. 

Section 6-4-4: Notice to Agencies and Political Subdivisions: 

A. The Director shall send a summary of development applications to applicable agencies, 
as determined by the Director. The notice shall be sent at least fifteen (15) calendar days 

Page 107 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02.11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

t

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

prior to the public hearing. 

B. The Director shall send a summary of petitions for Comprehensive Plan amendments anc 
applications for zoning-er4ifietneeOrdinance amendments to applicable agencies and 
political subdivisions as referenced in Idaho Code section 67-6509(a). The notice shall be 
sent at least fifteen (15) 
Rlaiffrecl 

ibi&-T-it-ledays prior to the public hearing. 

C. Applications within an Area of City Impact shall be noticed in accordance with the 
regulations of thisUt-leOtdintince. 

D. Applications for development within five (5) miles of the I I5db Mean Noise Line 
surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area will be 
forwarded to the Idaho Army National Guard for review and comment at least fifteen  15 
days prior to a hearing before the-lxiantl-Zenint, Commission. 

Section 6-4-5: Notice to Public: 

A. Legal Notice: At least fifteen (15) ettleftdar-ciays prior to the public hearing, the Director 
shall publish a notice of the time and place and a summary of the application in the 
official newspaper of general circulation in the eountyCounty. 

B. Site Notice: At least seven (7)-ealentieF days prior to the public hearing, the Director shal 
post a notice on the premises of the application, except for zoning-erdinameeOrdinanec 
text amendments or Comprehensive Plan amendments. 

C. Radius Notice: At least seven (7)-ealendef days prior to the public hearing, the Director 
shall send a notice of the time and place, and a summary of the application to property 
owners or purchasers of record (as listed in the current records of the Elmore County 
Assessor) owning property within thfee-lioneked-e-3001one thousand (1(H)0') feet of the 
property being considered. The Director may determine, or other applications provided 
for in this TA-leOrdinance may require, that notices be sent to property owners or 
purchasers of record whose properties are further than ilif,ee-hundi (36G-one thousand 
IOW') feet from the external boundaries of the property upon which the application is 

located. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

I. Tip. 1-ellowiag-u4e4-s4all 
prepefty-being-eeositler-e€1,  

bokiireiFt-er--AlFemft4entlingfieldt 

Page 108 of 672 REV-1-2015-02-11 



viOcv-any 4404ef type-eflaniat 
E-14)9W)-foot-radius-motiee7 

r 
 Formatted: leve12, Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.25", 
Space Before: 0 pt, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style, No bullets or numbering 

Formatted: levell, Indent: Left: 0", First line: 0", Don't add 
space between paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

e Ali-fapplrettt4en- 

tl,--B-ar4fey.:-pulvnightelttly;  

e -E-Kplt.r.iivt-ffledwf-sentfing-ef-siefage 

f--Fieningeble-strbsiemee-stepage-,-

t.—PanafiFyi• 

IRawer-plant 

e.-14fiet ele-er-an-inialt 

p•• s•jtrertery-kknt1{41eteelt 

r. Eriattgh-Wri40413e 

Sgeil-Eff-V'efger-Feediagf3f); 

6--Tannept4eiefved; 

u -Tewef-f3F-Onfenna-ERIeitifeli4gl 

Ale4lit.4e-4ffireefd-, 

feet-of -the-pfepefty-being-eons•itleped-, 
D. Alternate Forms of Notice: When posted or mailed notice is required of two hundred 

(200) or more property owners or purchasers of record, alternate forms of notice may be 
provided as follows: 

I. Notice of the time and place of the hearing and summary of the proposal shall be 
published in a newspaper of general circulation within the eetifityCountv not less 
than seven (7)-c-aleFtflav days prior to the hearing. 

2. Multiple site notices, the quantity determined by the Director, shall be posted not less 
than seven (7) calendar days prior to the hearing, in locations of high public uses 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 109 of 672 

 

REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

within the affected areas of the eeuft•tyCounty including post offices and major retail 
establishments including all external boundaries of the subject property. 

3. At least seven (7)--ealentlef days prior to the hearing, a notice shall be made available 
to the local newspapers, radio, and television stations servicing the efentyCotustv for 
use as a public service announcement. 

4. All non-owner occupied property shall receive written notice at least seven (7) 
eeleticter-days prior to the hearing. 
•.- 	- - 	- 	e 	- 	• •"3 	- 	; - 

e  , 	••: 	- 

define -bet Att14-aeries-s44-pr-ver+y-ewnefs tlf-ptifeliffieFS•ef feeerE17-repr-Ebefrs-of 

E. Public Service Announcement: In the case of amendments to this TitleOrdinanee and the 
Comprehensive Plan, the Director shall issue a notice to other newspapers;  and radio-oF 
tele.ei4loos stations serving the jurisdiction for use as a public service announcement prio 
to the public hearing. 

F. Applicants who propose development within five (5) miles of the 115db Mean Noise 
Line surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area will be 
provided the following notice by the  Grewili-and--Dew-leprneni-Department: 

Applicant is advised that the property may be located near a military installation tha 
conducts flight operations, munitions testing, or militaty operations that may result in 
high noise levels, traffic, and dust at all hours of the day throughout the year. Applicant 
should contact the public affairs office of the nearest military installation to determine 
whether the property may be impacted by testing or operations at the installation., 

Any new deeds resulting from development within five (5) miles of the 115db Mean 
Noise Line surrounding the Idaho Army National Guard, Orchard Training Range Area 
shall include the above notice. 

Section 6-4-6: Decision by the Director: 

A. Following the acceptance of an application, the Director shall act upon the application. 
Failure of the Director to act upon an application shall be deemed a denial of the 
application. 

B. The Director may defer a decision if additional information is required to make a 
decision.  If the application is tabled or deferred for more than one year it shall he 
considered withdrawn. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	1  
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

Formatted: Font: Italic 

[ Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

' Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 110 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

- 	Formatted: English (United States) 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

C. The Director may require conditions of approval that are deemed necessary to protect thel 
public health, safety, and welfare and prevent undue adverse impacts on surrounding 
properties. 

D. The Director shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of law iLI ..- 

Section 64-7: Appeals to Commission on Decisions of the Director: 	 

A.Appeal to Commission: And affected or all2rie\ ed person having an interest in real 
property which may be atheisek affected b). a decision of the Director made in  
interpreting or enforcing this Ordinance. may appeal such a decision to the Commission  
by Mine a written notice of appeal. A written notice shall he made by submittin2 the  
appropriate icl.• and_application to the Director within ten ( 101 calendar 42,.ws of the date t 

accordance with Idaho Code section 67-6519 stating the reasons for the decision reached 
All conditions of approval shall be attached to the written decision. 

such decision.  Anpek shall  be kased on one of the following; 

mosisions; yr 
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

2. 	In excess of the maw too authority of the agency; or 

3, 	M_adgJiliosi linlawist l OW5S03-1.rK, 

4 Not supported by substantial evidence on the record as a whole.  or  

5—Arbitrary apriciou&.or_an,abiast.oirli5creti 

HeariailY Commission: The Commission shall hold a public hearing. on a l (meals from 
decisions of the Director after notice has been given in accordance with this Ordinance.  
The public record shall remain wit wrid the Commission may accept new additional 
material and testimony., 	{Formatted:  Not Strikethrough 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

C. Decision by Commission: After tlikPublie hearing,  the Commission shall. enter a written  
order-affirming. reversing or modifying the Director's decision. The order hall also 
contain the reasons for ateCommission's deeisjog, 

Section 6-4-8: Decision by the Hearings Examiner: 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Hearings Examiner after the Director 
accepts an application. Prior to the public hearing, public notice shall be provided as set 
forth in this T-ifieTOiclinance.  

B. The Hearings Examiner shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the 
procedures of this Title-Ordinance. 

Page 111 of 672 	 REV-I-2015-02-11 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style C. The Hearings Examiner may require conditions of approval that he or she deems 

necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue 
adverse impacts on surrounding properties. 

D. The Hearings Examiner shall provide the applicant a written decision in accordance with) •-• 
Idaho Code sections 67-6520 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for the decision. Conditions 
of approval, if any, shall be attached to the written decision. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Commission after the Director accepts 
an application, 

. Prior to the public 
hearing, public notice shall be provided as set forth in this TitleOrdinance. 

B. The Commission shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the procedures of 
this T-i+leOrdinance. The Commission may continue the hearing if it determines in its 
discretion that additional hearings are necessary. The Commission, however, must issue a 
decision or recommendation as is applicable no later than one hundred twenty (120) days 
after the closing of the public hearing, ekoluditi#P#amied•Commooity, Rimed 4:414 

• .. 	• • ' • 	 -fiffplieftlieiti-Vs-speei•gree-ifl-this 

twenty (t2201-da4ds acief -the-decision has-been made., Failure of the Commission to issue 
a decision or recommendation shall be deemed a denial or a recommendation of denial of  
the application. 

C. Following the public hearing, if the Commission makes a material change to any 
application, further notice and hearing shall be provided in accordance with the 
regulations of this  Tit•le,Ordinance.  

D. The Commission may require or recommend conditions of approval that it deems 
necessary to protect the public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue 
adverse impacts on surrounding properties. 

E. The Commission shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of 
law in accordance with Idaho Code sections 67-6519 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for 
the decision or recommendation reached. Conditions of approval shall be attached to the 
written decision or recommendation. For applications where the Commission is acting as 
a recommending body, the Commission shall forward their recommendation to the 
Board. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

- - 
	

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Section 6-4-89: Decision by the Conunission: 

F. 	For applications where a decision or recommendation from the Commission is required - - - H  Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
by this Titie0: dinance, the Commission shall file a written report with the Clerk of the 	same style  

Board stating the findings and action taken by the Commission., 	 - Formatted:  Font: Not Italic  

Page 112 of 672 	 REV-1.2015-02-11 

1 



Page 113 of 672 REV-1-2015-02.11 

Seefieft4-4-9 

Section 6-4-19: Appeals to the Board on Decisions of the Commission or Hearing 
Examiner: 

A. Appeal and Reconsideration: Any affected or aggrievedperson having an interest in real 
property which may be.adverselLaliccadin Lhe issuance or den ial_pfa permit 
- 	is 	i• 	- esa-, 	4) 	- 	1 	1  1.1..4.1.QII.PLILL.C.QUILIII5Si911-010-eilkr_99Kal 
the decision to the Board and/pr reque.51.reconsidetvion by theS.onimissim, 

B. Request for Rixonsideration_sm_Commission Clecuat: Upon request of the applicant 0 
reconsidered by the Commission.  

Reconsideration before the Commission may begranted for lood cause. The Commissio 
Agl1 colt i

. 
jabasjauli 	m)At' ousogs_ts_opirgooilsfaigittsi nz 

limited to: 

I" 	• 	ti 	kg 	" 	I` 	2" 	gl 	• 1 	41 	1 	1 	 t 	1: 	. 	I 	11/1 	II 	IS 

The 	q._1:111fil. 	. 	aQUMagiatait3Latirrarariaa 
something brought up at the previous hearing; and 

3. 	The information was not previously available. 

C. 	Proc-ss for Reconsid .i.  ilion• 4. 	,..4 	- 	• 	c to i 	or. 	et 	i 	• I 	1 	SI! 	• I 
information and may be made.atany tirneTriOr kuhe deadline for _fl Ling an appeal as 
provided in this section 

1. A decision jayaiSalljanb5100 to 	 the reconsideration is not  
appealable. 

2. Reappearance before the Commission shall be on the appropriate application and 
submitted to the Director with fees IK.adopted by Ilie Boas-cL  This fee shall he 
refunded if the reconsideration request is denied 

• ;I. 	The Director will confer with the Comm islio. d ihueouevil chaigps yvpjjlij riot 
materially affect the Commission's decision, a reconsideration hearing may be 
PVE112911.41. 

4. 	If the applicant has modified the application. the Commission shall determine if the 
r_eiseitaoulic_atioksh_al 1 be rmasiclsesk1.. pjIA• . 

2 - 	- 	ii 	2 "12 	•I 	I - 	I' 	' 	I 	" 	I" 	it" 	0 	II 	4 1 	I 	1 1 	1 0 	II .  

be heard before the Commission shall be stayed. 

6. 	The applicant may still exercise applicant's rights to further appeal the Commission's 
decision to the Board. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

• 

• 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25', Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
,.paragraphs of the same style  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style  

[Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 



Formatted: Font: Italic 

    

       

' Formatted: leveil, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style  

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Normal, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style, Don't adjust space between Latin and Asian 
text, Don't adjust space between Asian text and numbers, 
Tab stops: 0.25', List tab 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style, Tab stops: 0.5", Left 

	•-; 
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

• 

7. 	- .0 I 	II - 1. 	III 	. 	11 	- I 	'.I 	I - 	 . 1 11 ,1 	.I 	Ilk'I 	If 

refunded in its entirety. 

1). Decision to Appeal: Anyperson aggrieved by a decision of the Commission may appeal 
Nugh_aslecisionyithe,Board,by_filingAwfinen notice of annex .Appeals shall be based 
olgm. of the 111lakita& 

J—Ilio_destsi 91atiwastfsgnit.itaio_naLoLsiaLttigt1 11.0t 

2, 	In excess of the statutou authoLitysif the ainney: or 

3—Alacleit.nOil_nnitt_wfUIVLOKsslikic.:. PI 

4. NQIssippstried by substantial evidence on the record as a whole: or 

5. Arbitrary capricious or sin 	of discretion .abuse 

E 	An appeal shall be made b), submitting the appropriate application and tee to the Directo 
ten (10) days of the Commission's final action. 

F. Notice of Appeal: The notice of appeal shall state the claie_anrIlhe_SIII/stance (Abe 
dEgiiii;1142.111111hLI:LildllabLibraP.D.rat 

G. Hearing by The Board: The Board shall conduct a public hearing in accordance to Idaho 
Code and this Ordinance. TheBonid,s.114.90lis 	i I 	‘' 	I 	. i. 	I 	'11. 	i 	' 	I ,  

place of the public hearing for the appeal and stating the subject of the appeal. The notice 
shall be published once in the newspaper of general circulatianat least fifteen (151 dad's 
prior to the hearing. In addition.ike WiMe MU& IIVItiipownts as were qpplicable to the 
Commission hg_aringS ata....aLwbichkeslegision_heing_appeald_waiinal_hgtr/A 
Thr...plihtkiessilishargalaiLo cunamtcrivracithuilaatinizmitio 
Attitirstimony 	Only the matters set forth in the appeaLshall 	considered by the Board. _be 
Theapnedbfailg.Pc1 =kW. AQI.l.liej d he 	'ng. but the Board may 
consider and incorporate the record and decision from the Commission in it4 
sighberlations and decision, 

II 	Decision hyjhelloard= The Board shall enter an order after the hearing, affirming. 
reversing_iitmodifynig the Commission's decision. The 	rdcr shall contain a statement of 
she rvasmsfonhe Board's decision 	sha1litesend3Lo.n_alLP.artie5 to the_tioglit.On it. .and 
own motion, the Board may 	within fourteen (14) days of issuing a ss ritten decision, 
reconsider that decision. 

. 	  

—  {rmatted:  No underline 

Page 114 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015.02-11 



Section fu-1-11: Decision by the Board: 

A. The Director shall schedule a hearing before the Board after the Director accepts an 
application or after the Commission makes a recommendation (if applicable). Prior to th 
public hearing, public notice shall be provided as set forth in this TitleOidinance and 
mtifeSiate law. 

B. The Board shall conduct the public hearing in accordance with the procedures of this 
TitleOrdinance.  

C. Following the public hearing, if the Board makes a material change to a Comprehensive 
Plan amendment application or ftnftc4r-dinainciaOrdinance amendment application, 
further notice and hearing shall be provided in accordance with the regulations of this 
Title. 	Ordinance.  

D. The Board may require conditions of approval that it deems necessary to protect the 
public health, safety, and welfare and/or to prevent undue adverse impacts on 
surrounding properties. This regulation shall not apply to applications for Comprehensive 
Plan amendments or .un-int,‘-e-FdinfingeOrdintince text amendments. 

1 
 Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

IFormatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

E. The Board shall provide the applicant written findings of fact and conclusions of law in 
accordance with Idaho Code sections 67-6519 and 67-6535 stating the reasons for the 
decision. Conditions of approval, if any, shall be attached to the written decision. 

F. Following the approval of a Comprehensive Plan amendment; the Board shall adopt a 
resolution adopting the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I  
same style 

Vormatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

G. Following the approval of a•-gonene-ofdiniglegan Ordinance amendment, the Board shall 
adopt an ordinance and, within thirty (30) eftle-n-dar-days, publish a summary of the 
ordinance in the official newspaper of general circulation in the getp*Counts. 

Section 6-4-12: Reconsideration h the Board 

A. Request for Reconsideration On Board's  Decision: The applicant or an aggrie‘ed party.  
may file an application for reconsideration by the Board within fourteen i 141 days of the  
Board's final decision in accordance with Idaho Code section 67-6535(2)(h) and this  
Ordinance.  Reconsideration before the Board may be granted for good cause. The Board 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style  

-LFormatted: Font: limes New Roman 

'Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

St 	tl 	0 - 	 'It - I tiaclatimbais..291 

 

limited to.  

I 	The party reutiestine reconsideration has relevant information; and  

Thcoloilu inforuatioluas not orevioullyzespted and is in response to 
something brought up at the previous hearing; and 

Page 115 of 672 	 REV-1-2015-02-11 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

- .-: 
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style 
	 '.. 
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
IL  same style 



Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between j 
paragraphs of the same style 

. Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same  style  

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

[-- 
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

..=.- ..-- 

3. 	The information was not previously available. 

B. 	Process: A request for reconsideration shall include supporting information and may be 
made at any time prior to the fourteen (14) day deadline for filing, 

I. 	A decision by the board to deny or approv_erbe rugnsiderationis not .apptagbie 

2, 	Reappearance before the Board shall be made by written request and application to 
the Director and shall include a fee as adopted I)_ 	the Board.jhi,$ fee shgll be 
refunded if the reconsideration is denied 

3. The Director will confer with the Board. if the requested changes would not 
matoliallLaffccilkiitsgrss.stsisiotLaigg_QUidgtAlionitocink' maLbractinillr4 

4. If the applicant has modified the application the Board shall determine if the revised 
application shall he reconsidered or if a new application is required. 

I 	14, 	' 	. 	I 	II 	. 	. 	./I 	.il 	11 . 1. 	I 	III" 	11,1 - 1 	I" 	:11t 	• 

decision. 

6. 	If reconsideration is eranted the Board shall schedule, notice and conduct a pihh1 /4: 
hearing in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance. 

Section 6-4-13: Waiver: 

The Director has the authority to determi ne.on a case-by-case basis if a pan iai waiver is 
wfa 	anted in a um ue 	en T e 	ao 	ti wa- v- 	utho 	• : led o 	- 0I'• *r 
f 10%) percent of the Ordinance reouiremenh. The Director can only issue an administrative 
waiver if the waiver does not negatively. affect public health and safety, meet the required 
findings of Ordinance section 64-13.A and does not deviate from the intent of this 
Ordinance. 

A. The Hearing Examiner. Commission or Board, in a public hearine. may approve a waives 
ereater than ten U_Ocilpercent from strict compliance v, ith a design standard in this 
Ordinance if an applicant can demonstrate that the waiver: 

I 	Is based on conditii risliniqur to_the property in q esti Il_ rid 	t gpp 	kangfaliN 
ta.Qlher properly. The propel ty in question demonstrates tin extraordinary hardship 
related to aphysical characteristics, surroundings or topographic features. and 

2.—isiwksiddrecataLwh_e_publichatb—sgslymaysliAmousi 

, 	i 	1 	I 	..45..1.... 	OA 	 6 	I 	I 	 1I6 

I Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 1 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 	I 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.25", Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

* 	• 	1 Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 116 of 672 
	

REV-I-2015-02-11 



Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

IFormatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Not Bold, No 
underline, Not Highlight 

Formatted: leve12, Left, Don't add space between 
paragraphs of the same style 

Formatted: Font: Bold 

4. Does not in any way nullify any other provision of this Ordinance or the Elmore 
County zoning map: and 

5. That the erantine of a waiver would better serve an ahem Live proposal where the 
applicant can demonstrate that the alternative proposal suggested would better serve 
ihe_ittleDded use or allip. 

B. Waivers may also be granted if other Federal. State or local agencies have jurisdiction 
pveithe lid/kali:mar andihtvhavt_ already issuerLa waiver That analicsielhe6V-aiver 
application before Elmore County. 

Section 6-4-14: Variances: 

Certain uses may require additional variance requirements in other sections of the Ordinance 

A. Process: 

1. 	The applicant shall complete apre-application conference with the Director prior to 
IIH 	ri 	al 	. 	ai 	a 	lmariancrfliid 

/ 	Application and fees shall be submitted to the Director on forms provided b.y the _An 
Department: and 

. 	ThQ.C. 11 n 	Il 	•I1 	ill. 	a 	al 	,,a 	a 	all 	a 	r 	1  - ! a 1  ! 	1  XgailacarVall . 	. 	 . 

Idaho Code and this Ordinance and apply the standard listed in subsection B of this 
section 	 listed in subsection C of this sectionitinview the variance ,aiggirfindings 

B. Standard: The variance shall comply with Idaho Code section 67-6516. 

C. Recjuired Findjng: In  order to grant a \ tu-tance,the Roard shall make. he follow in.g 
findings: 

I I. Tile-Y4i411X `Aillagi.V.__ 111111 Ls.iint PIlle,D4*ATIQW-VO 
in the base zone: and 

I 	_II.. 	I_ 	_* 	duetacharactaistics of the site:  

3. 	The variance shall not he detrimental to the public health, safety. and welfare. 

A 	- 

Section 6.4-15 Zoning Map Amendments: 	  

A, Zoning Oidinance Map Amendment requests shall he  in  compliance with this Ordinance 
and Comnrehenso•e Plan. 

- 

 -  F
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 117 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 



B. Process: Zoning, Map Amendment requests shall he subject to a public hearing. review, 
and approval subject to the regulations of this Ordinance. The process shall be as follows. 

. 	An application and fees, as set forth in this Ordinance, shall be submitted to the 

Director on forms provided by the Department. 

;4. 	A Development Agreement Application and approval may he required for all Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment requests in compliance with this Ordinance. 

C. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Initiated by the Board: The Board may propose a Zoning 
Ordinance Map Amendment in compliance with this Chapter, except that amendments 
initiated by the Board may not require a Development Agreement. 

D. Zoning Map Amendment Standards: 

I . 	The Land Use / Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment Matrix shall iie4til•y the zoning 
distncts that would he permissible through a Zoning Ordinance Map Amenchnent Ire 
zone) request and approval within each land use designation. 

2. 	Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (re-zone) requests should he consistent with the 
Land Use / Zoning_Map Amendment Matrix and the Comprehensive Plan where 
Commercial. Industrial Zones and Residenjial Zones are not arbitrarily being refonec 
without first updating the Elmore County Comprehensive Plan Kinn Land Use Mai 

li..isafralligdings: Upon recprpmendition from the Commission, is Board shall make •  
full investigation and shall, at the public hearing. review the Zoning Ordinance Map 

Amcndmcntitqugaand Development Agreement The Boa's.' shall make the following 
findings: 

I. 	The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment complies with the regulations outlined for 
this Chapter: and 

2. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment shall not he materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety and welfare: and 

3. The Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment request is in compliance with the 1 inLI 
Use/Zoning,Ordinance Map Amendment Matrix: and 

4. The Development Agreement niects the requirements of this Oidinance:_and 

5 That the approval 4 the Board, of a Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment =west 
would not "impede"(1' the normal flow of development; and 

Note: (i)  For the propose of this Chapter and required finding (number 5 listed 

proposed activity that would delay or cause modification to the progress of normal 

-  {Formatted:  Indent: Left: 0.5" 

Page 118 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015.02-11 



f 	• 	r 	I 	4 	la 	44.A' 	III" 	4 	4 	I' 	4 	 4 	f 	0 	. 	'e 	' 

the tont:W./low of progress and/or deyeloptnem mends. 

0.17t Kaniag, r irSZA AusAlap_htrncrislinol is not its conflio woituLcmpltbotsivq . 
Plan. 

F, 	Approval and Reversal of Action: If the Board approves a Zonine Ordinance Map 
Amendment pursuant to a request. the Board shall not subsequently reverse its action or 
otherwise chance the ionin,,  classification as set forth in Idaho Code Section 67-651 I d 

0. Phial approval  Qi.  a -Amine Ordinance Map Amendment shall be continent upon an 
executed and recorded development agreement in compliance with this Chapter and 
Ordinance. except that amendments initiated by the Board may not rec uire a 
Development Atzreement. 

H. Following the approval of Zonine Ordinance Map Amendment, the Board shall adopt an 
Ordinance. and within thirty 001 days. publish a summary of the Ordinance and legal 
description in the official newspaper of general circulation in the County. 

Page 119 of 672 	 REV-1-2015.02-11 



Table 6-4-15 
' 	.!Ifi 	' 	• 	- 	!Zonirr, 	'1 . 	.., 	, 	:it, 	Pre!lr:t•tril 	'%;;.,1 

A., 	Rec RR  I  Cl C2 	MI 	M2 	PA7, ABHZ ACZ PC Pl.;1) 	PlUDD Current Zoning 
II District / Land Use 

Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Rezone) Opportui ities 
chLio:1-1 
Agriculture/Grazing/Forest , 1 I 1 I 1 i 1 Z 1 1 1 / 
(Ai!) 

Recreation / Tourism (Ree ) - 1 1 1 . . 1 : : 11 V  

Rural Residential (RR/MU) - , 1 i 1 

Neight10.1kOA_C_OMMe_r_cial i i i I •- - 7 - , Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
(Cl) 

.4  ; ✓ ; i ; ; 
; — — — Vertical: 0.41", Relative to: Page 

Highway/Interstate . 1 1 1 ,, i ✓ Formatted: `--  -,r Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
Commercial (C)) 

; ; ; ; 1 : 
_ — Vertical: 0.41", Relative to: Page 

Light  
Industrial/Manufacturing 1 ; a  ; 1 ; 1 ; ; ; 1 i 

__ 
L 

Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
Vertical: 	0.41", Relative to: Page  

(Mil i 
Heavy  
Industrial/Manufacturing 1 , ; ; 1 1 ...; ; . . 1 1 

•-• — - 
I 

Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
Vertical: 0.41", Relative to: Page 

(M2)  
Public Airport Wizard Zone "--  - - - Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
IPAZI 

i 1 I ;  ; ; z ; ; = Vertical: 0.41", Relative to: Page 

Air Base Haz rd Zone 
fABH7.1 .. .: ; ; .: .. ; ; ; ; 4-  -- 

= 
Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
Vertical: 0.41", Relative to: Page 

Air Base Commercial Zone . 
i ACZI 

1 ; ; I 1 ; ; ; ..r. - 
. 

- 
= 

.---  - _'- Formatted: Position: Horizontal: Center, Relative to: Margin, 
Vertical: 	0.41", Relative to: Page 

Planned  C0111111U111(V  (PC) - - - - - 

Planned Unit Development 
I PUD) - - - - - - - - - - - - . . 

Planned Unit Development . 
DistricUPUDD) - - - - - - - - - . - 

Section 6-4-16: Zoniqg Ordinance Text Amendments: 

A. Process-  
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 

, same style 

1. loninu Ordinance Text Amendment Initiated by Board: The Board may propose to 
amend this Ordinance followine notice and public hearing proeeclure$ in compliance 
with this Ordinan( e. 

,... 
2. /on in. Ordinance Text Amendment Initiated lu Pro pert 	Owner: The applicant shall 

. 	 ._ . 	 . 	. . . 

4- 	- Formatted: level2, Indent: Left: 0.25", Hanging: 0.25", 
Space Before: Opt, Don't add space between paragraphs of 
the same style, No bullets or numbering 

complete pre-app ication con f erence with the L)tIcctor pnol to submittal o 
application For a Zonine Ordinance Text Amendment. An application and fees shall 
he submitted to the Director on forms provided by the Department.  

Page 120 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02.11 

1 



I. 	Application: The Commission and Board shall conduct public hearings required by 
Idaho Code and this Ordinance. The Board shall apply the findings listed in 
subsection B of this section to review the Zoninu Ordinance Text Amendment. 

B. Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the Commission. the Board shall make t 
full Investigation and shall. at the public hearing. res icw the application. In order to gnus 
a Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. the Board shall make the following findings: 

I. 	The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment complies with the applicable 
Comprehensive Plan; and 

2. 	The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment complies with the regulations outlined for 
the proposed base zone, specifically the purpose statement: and 

1. 	The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the 
public health. safety. and welftue: and 

4. The Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment shall not result in an adserse impact upon 
the delivery of services by ari.y political subdivision providing public services within 
the planning pirisdiction including, but not limited to. school districts. 

5. Following the approval of Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. the Board shall adop 
an Ordinanec,and within thirLy (101 days. publish a summary of the Ordinance in the 
official newspaper of general circulation in the County. 

Section 6-4-18aime_Exteng= 

The Dirmor_shall review an armlication for a time extension. The time extension shall 
commence from the date of expiration of the previous approval, except in the case of an 
apiNALQUAQsaulAppmiaLw.hau buirEaszacrisinnsbglisRm atnrsilszrtilejj qa 1 
resolution of such appeal. 

A._..2.1200.55.: 

I. 	An application and fees shall be submitted to the Director on forms providedby the 
Demon-mu_ 

a_The_application shalLintehtde_a_mitien_requesi indicating the need for a time 
;ISMIsion. 

The a No lication shall be riqIQemirAttpli_d N cgikotiginaLapproxal. 

2. 	At the discretion of the Director. other agencies may he notified of the lime extension 
I.Cflig-SE in or 	,I 	their. •.-u   it - 1 	to 	k I si si - e a. 	 t 	o 	It 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

I
Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same  style 

Page 121 of 672 
	

REV-1-2015-02-11 



3. The Director shall apply the standards listed in subsection B of this section and the 
find~sJisjeg in subs a;tion C of this section to review the 	e,gglen4ion. 

4 T 
an  approved development (excluding final plats1 

J-.3.—St ntl arti; 

I. The applicant or owner for an approved development njy apply for a one ( I ) time 
extension for a period not to exceed one [.I1 year, unless otherwise upwved hi. the 
Director, Commission and/or Board. 

C. Required Findings:  

/ 	The applicant and/or owner have adequately Milled. the nest for runt= extension, 

I Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the 
same style 

Page 122 of 672 REV-1-2015-02-11 



JEROME COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING 
300 NORTH LINCOLN ROOM 307*JEROME ID 83338 

Planning & Zoning (208) 324-9116 

Code Enforcement (208) 644-2713 

RECORDED DOCUMENT FOR ZONING 
VIOLATION RELEASE 

LAND USE 

Lease blank for Recorder 

Jerome County Planning & Zoning Office has verified that a Recorded 

  

Violation has been corrected. 

   

Recorded Violation Date 	  

Name of Property Owner: 	  

Address of the Property Owner: 	  

Address of Property in Violation: 	  

Location of Property Section 	Township 

Deed of Record Instrument # 	 

Real Property# 	  

Range 

This letter has been recorded at the Jerome County Courthouse and will remain on record as verification that the 
property is no longer in violation. The property is in compliance in accordance with the Jerome County Zoning 
Ordinance. 

Documents pertaining to the Violation and Release are on file at the Jerome County Planning and Zoning Office 
and are available for review upon the submittal of a Public Records Request. 

Sincerely, 	 S 
E 
A 

Arthur R. Brown 
	

L 
Planning & Zoning Administrator 

State of Idaho 	) 	Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me this 	day of 	 , 20 	 
S.S. 

County of Jerome) 

	

	 My Commission Expires on: 	  
Notary Public 

CAUsersthwesterwelle\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\XSGABLAQ\Land Use 
Release Recorded Document for Zoning Violation.doc 

I 	 I 

Facsimile (208) 324-9263 

Building Dept. (208) 324-9262 



JEROME COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING 
300 NORTH LINCOLN ROOM 307*JEROME ID 83338 

Planning & Zoning (208) 324-9116 

Code Enforcement (208) 644-2713 

Facsimile (208) 324-9263 

Building Dept. (208) 324-9262 

RECORDED DOCUMENT FOR ZONING 
VIOLATION 
LAND USE 

Leave blank for Recorder 

Jerome County Planning & Zoning Office has verified that a Land Use Violation has occurred. 

Violation Notice Date 	/ 	/ 	  

Name of Property Owner: 	  

Address of the Property Owner 	  

Address of Property in Violation 	  

Location of Property 	Section 

 

Township 	Range 	  

 

Deed of Record Instrument # 	  

Real Property# 	  

This letter has been recorded to document a Violation of the Jerome County Zoning Ordinance. The Property 
Owner was duly noticed that a violation has occurred and has been provided with an opportunity to cure the 
violation. The Property Owner has been notified that a Land Use Violation is not in compliance with the Jerome 
County Zoning Ordinance until the violation is cured. The Property Owner was duly noticed that a Document for 
Zoning Violation would be would be recorded at the Jerome County Courthouse for failure to take action on the 
Reported Violation within sixty (60) days of notice. 

This letter will be recorded at the Jerome County Courthouse and will remain on record as a violation until 
corrective action has been taken. This document will serve as notice to successors or assigns that the violation will 
remain on the property and those successors or assigns are subject to the Jerome County Zoning Ordinance 
including any and all penalties and fines. 

Documents pertaining to the Violation are on file at the Jerome County Planning and Zoning Office and are 
available for review upon the submittal of a Public Records Request. 

Sincerely, 	 S 
E 
A 

Arthur R. Brown 
	

L 
Planning & Zoning Administrator 

State of Idaho 	) 	Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me this 	day of 	 , 20 	 
S.S. 

County of Jerome) 

	

	 My Commission Expires on: 	  
Notary Public 

CAUsers\bwesterwelle\AppData\LocaNlicrosoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook9CSGABLAQ\Land Ure 
Recorded Document for Zoning Violation.doc 


	P&Z packets 2015-03-18.pdf
	2015-03-18-Packet-1.pdf

